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Andres Pitargue, plaintiff-appellee, vs.
Leandro Sorilla, defendant-appellant, G.
R. L-4302, September 17, 1952, Labra-
dor, J.

1. POSSESSORY- ACTION:; FORCIBLE
ENTRY AND DETAINER; RECOVE-
RY OF POSSESSION OF REAL PRO-
PERTY.— Under the Civil Code,
either in the old, which was in force
in this country before thé American
occupation, or in the new, we have
a possessory action; the aim and pur-
pose of which is the recovery of the
hysical p ion of real propertv,
irrespective of the question as to who
has the title thereto.

2. PUBLIC LANDS: COURTS: JURIS-
DICTION OF COURTS OVER POS-
SESSORY ACTIONS.— The vesting
of the Lands Department with au-
thority to administer, dispose, and
alienate public lands must not be
understood as depriving the other
branches of the Government of the
exercise of their ive functi

as a fact, of ‘physical possession, not
a legal possession. The title or right
to possession is never in issue in an
action of forcible entry; as a matter
fact, evidence hereof is_ expressly
banned, except to prove the nature

of the possession.
5. PUBLIC LANDS: COURTS; FORCI-
BLE ENTRY AND UNLAWFUL
DETAINER; JURISDICTION OF

COURTS OVER FORCIBLE ENTRY -

AND UNLAWFUL DETAINER NOT
AN INTERFERENCE WITH ALIEN-
ATION OF PUBLIC LANDS— The
ant of power and duty to the
ds Department to alienate and
dispose of public lands does not di-
vest the courts of their duty or power
to take cognizance of actions insti-
tuted by settlers or occupants or ap-
plicants against to protect
their respective possessions and occu-
pations, more especially the actions
of trespass, forcible entry and unlaw-
ful detainer, and the exercise of such
jurisdiction is no interf with
.18 0o

or powers thereon. such as the au-
thority to stop disorders and quell
breaches of the peace by the polics,
and the authoritv on the part of the
courts to take' jurisdiction over pos-
sessory actions arising therefrom ne.
involving, directly or indirectly, aliea-
ation and disposition.

3. ID:; ID.; PREJUDICIAL INTER-
FERENCE: DISPOSITION OR ALIE-
NATION OF PUBLIC LANDS.-The
d ination of the ive rights
of rival claimants to public lands is

different from the determination « f

who has the actual physical posses-

sion or occupation wil
protecting the same and preventing
disorder and breaches of the peace.

A judgment of ‘the court ordering

re:ititution of the possession of a par-

cel

been deprived thereof by
another through the use of force or
in any other illegal manner, can nev-
er be “prejudicial interference” with
the disposition or alienation of public
lands.

4. FORCIBLE ENTRY AND UNLAW-
FUL DETAINER; NATURE OF AC-
TION OF FORCIBLE ENTRY.—The
action of forcible entry is a summaiy
and expeditious remedy whereby onz
in peaceful and quiet possession may
recover the possession of which he
has been deprived by a stronger hand,
by violence or terror- its ultimate ob-
ject being to prevent breach of thz
peace and criminal disorder. The ba-

a view to.

land to the actual occupan;, '

the ali i and con-
trol of public lands.

6. ID; ID; ID.; RIGHTS OF APPLI-
CANT FOR BRUBLIC LANDS PRO-
TECTED BY POSSESSORY ACTION
OF FORCIBLE ENTRY.- Even pend-
ing the investigation of, and resolu-
tion on, an application for a public
lands by a bona fide occupant, by
the priority of his application ard
record of his entry, he acquires =
right to the possession of the public
land he applied for against any other
public land applicant, which -right
may protected by the possessory
action of forcible entry or by any
other suitable remedy that our rules
provide.

7. JUDGMENT: FORCIBLE ENTRY AND
UNLAWFUL DETAINER; USURPA-
TION OF REAL PROPERTY; EF-
FECT OF JUDGMENT IN CRIMINAL
CASE UPON CIVIL ACTION.— The
dismissal of criminal action for usur-
pation of real property is not a bar
to the filing of an action of forcible
entry, for not only are the parties in
the criminal action and in the action
for forcible entry not identical, but
the causes of action involved are also
- different.

Vicente Fontanosa for appellant.
Martin A. Galit, for appellee.
DECISION
LABRADOR, J.:

On July 30, 1941, plaintiff-appelles
led a-miscell sales application for

a parcel of land known as Cadastral
Lot No. 2777 situated at Mlang, Ki-
dapawan, Cotabato, and paid a depo-
sit of P5.00 therefor (Exhibit F). The
Bureau of Lands acknowledged receipt
of his apolication on November 22, I‘)fl
(Exhibit E), and informed that it had
been referred to the district land office
of Cotabato, Cotabato. Upon receipt of
this acknowledgement he started the
construction of a small house on the lot,
but the same was not finished because
of the outbreak of the war. In 1946
he had another house constructed on
the lot, which he used both as a clinic
(he is a dentist) and as a residence. He
introduced other imp on the
land "and these, together with the house,
he declared for tax purposes (Exhibit
B), paying taxes thereon in 1947 and
1948 (Exhibits C and D). He placed
one Cacayorin in charge of the house,
but Cacayorin left it on December 13,
1948.  Thereupon defendant-appellant
herein demolished the house and built
thereon one of his own. On.December
17, 1948, plantiff went to defendant
and asked the latter why he had con:-
tructed a building on the land, and the
latter gave the excuse that there was no
sign of interest on the sign of interest or
ghe part of the one who had applied for
it.

On March 9, 1949, plaintiff-appel-
lee instituted this action of forcible entry
in the Justice of the peace court, praying
that defendant be crdered to vacate the
lot usurped and remove the construction
he had made. thereon, with monthly da-
mages at P10. Thereupon defendant
filed a motion to dismiss the action on
two grounds, namely, (1) that the count
has no jurisdiction over the subject ma:-
ter, as the same falls under the exclu-
sive jurisdiction of the Bureau of Lands,
and (2) that the action is barred by u
prior judgment, because a previous cri-
minal action for usuipation of real prop-
erty filed by plaintiff against him had
been dismissed. The Justice of the peace
court denied the motion on the ground
that_the issue involved is as to who was
in the .actual possession of the lot ia
question on Deccember 14, 1948, which
issue can be resolved only after presen-
tation of evidence (Record on Appeal,
pp. 26-27). Thereupon defendant filed
an answer denying blaintiff’s possessicn
since 1946, anxl .alleging as special de-
fenses (1) that the lot is an unawarded
public land, which is already under in-
vestigation by the Bureau of Lands, and
(2) that defendarit was already acquit-
ted of a criminal charge filed by plain-
tiff .against. him for usurpation of real
By way of counterclaim he

sis of the remedy is mere p
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demanded P2,800 from plaintiff (Re-
cord on Appeal, pp. 27-33). On June
4, 1949, the Justice of the peace court
declared itself without jurisdiction to try
the case for the reason that the subject
matter of the action is the subject of an
administrative investigation (Ibid., p.
39). Against this judgment plaintiff ap-
pealed to the Court of First Instance.
At first this court refused to take cog-
nizance of the case, but upon the au-
thority of the case.of Mago vs. Bihag,
44 O.G. (12) 4934, decided by the
Court of Appeals, it proceeded to try
the case on the merits. After trial it found
the facts already set forth above, and
sentence the defendant. to vacate the land
and indemnify the plaintiff in the sum
of P100, with costs. Against this judg-
ment this appeal has been presented. the
defendant-aopellant making the follow-
ing assignments of error in his brief:

1. The lower Court erred in trylng
the case when the land involved is o
public land and jurisdicton of which he
long to the Land Department of the Phit-
ippines.

2. The lower Court erred in trying
the case when prior to the commence
ment of this action an administrative
case was (is) pending between the par-
ties over the same land in the Bureiu
of Lands and, as such, the latter ha:
acquired first jurisdiction over the suh
Ject-matter of the action.

3. The lower Court erred in trying
the case when the cause of this action
is barred by a prior judgment,

4. The lower Court erred in tryiny
the case and rendering a decision m
the merits when its Quty after it hal
determined that the Justice of the Peace
Court has jurisdiction is (o reverse ‘he
order of dismissal of the inferior court
and remand to it for further procee?-
ings.

Under the facts and circumstances of
the case the question now before us is
as follows: Do courts have jurisdiction
to entertain an action of forcible entry
instituted by a bona fide applicant of
public land, who is in occupation and
peaceful possession thereof and who has
introduced improvements, against one
who deprives him of the possession there-
of before award and pending investiga-
tion of the lication?  Defend

tion of the conflict betiveen plaintiff-
appellee herein and the defendant-
appellant has been suspended because of
the trial of the criminal case for usurpa-
tion filed by g:intiff against defendant-
appellant. (See Record on Appeal, pp.
25-26.) We note from the certificate,
hpweyer, that while plaintiff’s applica-
tion is registered as MPSA 9917, defend-
art-appellant does not appear to have
made any formal application at all.

It must be made clear at the outset
that this case does not involve a situation
where the Bureau of s has already
made an award of, or authorized and
entry into, the public land. It is purely
a possessory action by a bona fide appli-
cant who has occupied the land he has
applied for before. the outbreak of the
war under the ostensible autherity of his
app!icatiop. which was given due course
for investigation, but as to which no ap-
proval has been given because investiga-
tion has not yet been finished.

An ideal situation in the dispository
of public lands would be one wherein
these alienable and disposable are yet
unoccupied and are delivered to the ap-
p}!ur!u upon the approval of their ap-
plication, free from other occupants or
claimants, But the situation ia the coun-
try has invariably been the opposite;
lands are occupied without being ‘applied
for, or before the applications are ap-
proved. In fact, the approval of appli-
cations often takes place many years
after the occupation began or the appli-
cation was filed, so that many other
applicants or claimants have en! the
land in the meantime, provoking con-
flicts and overlapping of applications.
For some reason or other the Lands De-
partment has been unable to cope with
the ever increasing avalanche of appli-
cation, or of conflicts and contests bet-
ween rival applicants and claimants.

The question that is before this Count
is: Are courts without jurisdiction to take
cognizance of possessory actions involv-
ing these public lands before final awar.!
1s made by the Lands Department, and
before title is given any of the conflic.-
irg claimants? It is one of utmost im-
portance, as there are public fands every-
where and there are thousands of settlers,

appellant contends that as the adminis-
trative disposition and control of publiz
lands is vested exclusively in the Lands
Department, cognizance of the forcible
enu-y'action or“of any possessory aclioE

a D
with the said administrative fi

pecially in newly opened regions. It
also involves a matter of policy, as it
requires the determination of the respec-
live authorities and functions of two co-
di branches of the G i
connection with public land conflicts.

is made simple by the

ause there is an administrative case
pending in the Bureau of Lands between
the same parties over the same land. The
record contains a certificate of a lands
inspector the effect that the investiga-
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fact that under the Civil Code, either
in the old, which was in force in this
country before the American occupatioa,
or in the new, we have a possessory
action, the aim and purpose of. which is
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the recovery of the physical possession
of real property, irrespective of the ques-
tion as to who has the title thereto.
Under the Spanish Civil Code we had
the accion interdiclal, a summary pro-
ceeding *which could be brought within
one year from dispossession (Roman Ca.
tholic Bishop of Cebu vs. Mangaron, 6
Phil. 286, 291); and as early as Octo-
ber 1, 1901, upon the enactment of he
Code of Civil E’omeedm (Act No. 190
of the Philippine Commission) we im-
planted the commen law action of forci-
ble entry (Section 80 of Act No. 190),
the object of which has been y
fhis Court to be “to prevent breaches of
the peace and criminal disorder
ensue from the withdrawal of the remedy,
and the reasonable hope such withdrawal
would create that some advantage must
accrue to these persons who, believinz
themtelves entitled to the possession of
property, resort to force to gain posses-
sion rather than to some appropriate ac-
tion in the courts to assert their claims.
Supia and Batioco vs. ntero and
t(hg enactinent of the first Public Land
Ayala, 59 Phil. 312, 314. So beforc
Act (Act No.'926) the action of forcible
entry was already available in the courts
of the country. So the question to be
resolved is, Did the Legistature intend,
when it vested the power and authority
to alienate and disnose of the public
lands in the Lands Department, to ex-
clude the courts from -entertaining the
possessory action of forcible entry betweea
rival claimants or occupants of any land
before award thereof to any of the pa:-
ties? Did Congress intend that the lands
applied for, or all public lands for that
matter, be removed from the jurisdiction
of the Judicial Branch' of the Govern.
ment, so that any troubles arising there-
from, or any branches of the peace or
disorders caused by rival claimants,
could be inquired into only by the Lands
Department to the exclusion of the
courts?  The answer to this E:esno‘n
seems to us evident. The Lands De-
partment does not have the means to
police public lands; neither does it l.lgve
the means to orevent disorders arising
therefrom, or contain breaches of the
peace among settlers; or to pass prompt-
Iv upon conflicts of possession. Thel.l.-ts
power is clearly limited to disposition
and dlienation, and while it may decide
conflicts -of possession in order to make
proper award, th~ ‘settlement of conflicts
of ion which is ized in the
courts herein has another ultimate pu:
pose, ie., the protection of actual pos-
sessors and occupants with a view to the
prevention of breaches of the peace.
The power to dispose and alienate could
not have been intended to include the
power o prevent or settle disorders or
breaches of the peace among rival settlers
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or claimants prior to the final award
to this, therefore, the corresponding
branches of the Government must con-
linue to exercise power and jurisdiction
within the limits of their respective func-
tions, The ves:lng of the Ltnds De-

dispose, and alienate public lands. there-
fore, must not be understood as depriving
the other branches of the Government
of ‘the exercise of their respective func-
tions or powers thereon, such as the au-
thority to stop disorders and quell
bieaches of the peace by the police, and
the "authority on the part of the couris
to take )umdu:tlon over ac-
tions arising therefrom not invelving, di-
rectly or indirectly, alienation and dis-
position.

Our auentnon I\as been called to a
courts
to the effect that courts have no jurisdic-
tion to determine the rights of claimants
to public lands, and that.until the dispc-
sition of the land has passed from the
control of the Federal Government, the
courts will not interfere with the admi-

ristration. of matters concerning the same.
(50 C. J. L-4931094.) e kave no
quarrel with this principle. ~ The deter-

mination of the respective rights of rival
claimants ‘o public lands ¥ different
from the determmanon of who has !h-
actual ph

with a view to rom:un the same and
preventing dmrser and hes of the

Phil. 312, 314) The basis of the

is mere possession as a fact of
physical possession, not a lezal posses-
sion. (Mediran vs. Villanueva, 37
Phil. 752.) The title or right to pos-
Gession is never in issue in an action of
forcible entry; as a matter of fact, evid-
ence thereof is. expressly banned, except
to prove d\e nature of the possessior..
(Sccnon , Rule 72, Rules of Court.)
With this nature of the action in mind,
by no stretch of the imagination can the
conclusion be arrived at that the use of
the remedy in the courts of justice would
constitute an interference with the alien-
ation, disposition, and control of public
lands. To limit ourselves to the case a*
bar, can it be pretended at all that its
result would in any way interfere with
the manner of the alienation or dispo:i-
tion of the land contested? On the con-

Pprevent

Injustice, by ' preventing en-

upon the rights
of settlers, or by equitably adjusting
their differences. In the case under con-
sideration, no adequate remedy at law
is provided for relief. Ejectment will
not lie. Adams v. Couch, 1 Okl 117, 2¢
Pac. 1009. And, at the time this pro-
ceeding was instituted, the forclble en-
try and detalner act was insufficlent in
its provisions to afford a remedy. The
appellee was entitled to speed reliet, and
ought not to be compelled to wait th:
final and tedious result of the litigation
in the interlor department, before ob-
taining that which he clearly shows him-
self entitled to have.

That action of forcible entry was then
deemed insufficient in that state to pre-
vent acts of trespass interfering with an
so that the court

trary, it would facilitate adjudi

for the question of pnomy of possession
having' been decided in a final manner
by the courts, said question need no
longer waste the time of the land officers
making the adjudication or award.

The original Public Land Law (Act
926) was drafted and passed by a Com-
mission compt mostly of Americans,
and as the United States has had its
vast public lands -and as the Uhnited

ates has had its yast public lands and
has had the same problems as we now
have, mvolvmg their settlement and or-

it is to assume that

peace, A judgment of the court or-
dering restitution of the possession of a
parcel of land to the actual

it was their intention to introduce int>
the country rhecj llws in relatnon to ou

who has been deprived thereof by an-
other through the use of force or in any
cther illegal manner, can never be “pre-
judicial interference” with the disposition
or dlienation of public lands. On the
otha _hand, if courts were. deprived of

of cases i conflicts
of possession, the threat of judicial action
against breaches of the peace oommﬁter]
on public lands would be el

ispost-
tion. The problem now broug]\t be-

orcierecl the issuance of an injunction.
The main issue involved, however, was
whether pending  final investigation and
award the occupant should be protected
in his possession, and the Supreme Court
of Oklahoma said it should, issuing au
injunction to protect said possession.

The same conclusion was arrived a:
by the Supreme Court of Washington in
the case of Colwell v. Smith, | Wash.
T. 92, 94, when it held:

‘We will not decide between two coa-
flicting clalmants, both of whom are
actually in possession of certain portions
of the claim in dispute, who is in thz
righv, 30 far as to dispossess one or tn:
other from the entie claim, which would
render it impossible for him to prove tha:

fore us was
case in the year 1894 before the Suprem‘.
Court of Oklahoma in the case of
Spreat v. Durland, 2 Okl. 24, 35 Pac.
682, and said court made practvcall,'
the same solution as we have, thus:

X x x. This question is one of vita!

a state of lawlemless would probably be

pr squatters, where force or might, not
right or justice, would rule.

It must be borne in mind that the
action that would be used to solve con-
flicts of possession between rivals or con-
flicting applicants or clumum would be
no’ other than that of forcible entry.
This action, both in England and the.
United States and in our jurisdiction, i+
a 'summary and expeditious remedy
whereby one in peaceful and quiet pos-
session may recover the possession of
which he has been deprived by a strong=t
hand, by violence or terror; its ultimate
object being to prevent breach of ‘*he
peace and criminal disorder. (Supia and
Batiaco vs. Quintero and Ayala, 59

638

in Ol All our lands
are entered, and title procured therefor,
under the homestead laws of the United
States. The question arising out of
averse possession, as between homeste~d
claimants, daily confronts our courts.
To say that no rellef can be grantel,
or that our courts are powerless to do
Justice between litigants in this class of
cases, pending the settlemeni of title in
the land department, would be the an-
nouncement of a doctrine abhorrent to
a sense of common justice. It would
encourage the strong to override the
weak, would place a premium upon greed
and the use of force, and, in many in-
stances, lead to bloodshed and ecrime.
Such a state of affairs is to be avolded,
and. the courts should not hesitate to
invoke the powers inherent.in them, and
lend their aid, in every woy possible, to
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the law requires, and thus con-
test his claim before.the register and
receiver; we can and must protect either
party from trespass by the other, upon
such portion of the claim as may be ‘n
the actual exclusive possession of such
party.

Resuming the considerations we have
set forth above, we hold that the great
cf power and duty to the Lands Depar:-
ment to alienate and dispose of public
lands does not divest the courts of theic
duty or power to take cognizance of ac-
tions instituted by settlers or occupants
or applicants against others to protect
their respective possessions and occupa-
tions, more especially the actions of tres-
pass, forcible entry and unlawful de-
tainer, and that the exercise ju-
risdiction is no interference with the alie-
nation, disposition, and control of public
lands. e question we have piop!
to consider must be answered in the
affirmative.

Ourresolution above det forth answels
t's

have. however, to go further and explore
another fundamental question, ie., w]
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ther a public land applicant, such as the
plaintiff-appellee herein, may be consi-
as having any right to the land
occupied, which may entitle him to sue
in the courts of justice for a remedy for
the return of the possession hereof, such
as an action of forcible entry or unlaw-
ful detainer, or any other suitable remz-
dy provided by law. In the United
States a claim “is initiated by an entry
of the land, which is effectual by mak-
ing an application at the proper land of-
fice, filing the affidavit and paying the
amounts required by x x x the Revised
Statutes. (Sturr v. Beck, 133 U.S. 541,
10 S. Ct. 350, 33 L. Ed. 761.) “Entry”
as applied to appropriation of land,
“means that act by which an individual
acquires ‘an inceptive right to a portion
of the unappropriated soil of the coun-
try, by flling his claim.” (Ibid,, citing
C{omd v. Pope, 25 U.S. 12" Wheat,
586, 588.) It has been held that en-
try based upon priority in the initiatory
steps, even if not accompanied by oc
cupation, may be recognized as against
another applicant.
In Hasting & Dakota R. Co. v. Whit-
ney, ubi supra, an affidavit for the puv-
. pose of entering land as a homestead
was filed on behalf of one Turner, in a
local land office in Minnesots, on May
8, 1865, Turner claiming to act under
section 1 of the Act of March 21, 1864
(13 Stat. 35), now section 2203 of th-
Revised Statutes lof the United States
As a matter of fact, Turner was ncve:
on the land, and no member of his fam-
ily was then residing, or cver did reslde,

clared forfeited, in which case the lanl
reverts to the government as part of th:
public domain, and because again sul.-
ject to entry under the Land Laws; anl
it was held that whatever defects thase
might be in an entry, so long as it s>
mained a subsisting’ entry of record,
whose legallty had been passed upon by
the land authoritles and their action r-
mained unreversed, it was such an a)-
propriation of the tract as segregated it
from the public domain, and therefor>
precluded it from subsequent grant; anl
that this entry on hehalf of Turner “at.
tached to the land” in question, with the
‘meaning of the Act of Congress making
the grant (14 Stat. 87), and could no*
be included within it. And as to me:>
_ settlement with the intention of obtair -
ing tlte under the pre-emption Lav:,
while it has been held that no vest:d
right in the land as against the Unit:1
States is acquired until all the prere-
quisites for the acquisition of title hav:
been complied with, yet rights in parti~s
as against each’ other 'were fully recog-
nized as existing, based upon priovity i
the initlatory steps, when followed up
to a patent. “The patent which Is afte:
wards issucd relates back to the date
of the initlatory act, and cuts off all in-
tervening clalmants.” Sheplev v. Cowa -,
91 U.S. 330, 337 (23:424, 420).

There are compelling reasons of po-
licy supporting the recognition of a right
in a bona fide applicant who has occu:-
pied the land applied for. Recogni-
tion of the right encourages actual set-
Elel?lem; it di lation and
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court for wial. The record disclos.s
that upon the docketing of the case in
the Court of First Instance on appea,
defendant-appellant filed a motion 3
dismiss which the Court of First Instance
granted. However, upon motion for re-
consideration filed by plaintiff, the tria!
court vacated this order of dismissal, and
hereupon_the defend sented his
answer. There was no need of remand-
ing the case to the justice of the peace
court for trial, because this court had
already .heard and tried’ the case evid-
cntly on the merits. The case was, there-
fore, brought before the Court of First
Instance on appeal and for a new fFial,
not only on the question of jurisdiction
but on the merits also.

The claim of bar by a prior judg-
ment, because the action for usurpation
of real property instituted by plaintiff-
appellant was ism can not be sus-
tuined, for not only are the parties ir
the previous criminal action and in this
action of forcible entry not identical, bu:
the causes of action involved are also
different.

The judgment-appealed from-is her:-
bv affirmed, with costs against the an-
pellant.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla,
T uason, ontemayor, and Bautis'a
Angelo, conciirred.

/]
PSla. Mesa Slipways & Engineering

Ik

on it, and no had
ever been made thereon by anyone. Upon
being paid their fees, the register and
receiver of the land office allowed tne
entry, and the same stood upon the re-
cords of the local land office. and upon
the. records of the General Land Office,
uncancelled, until September 30, 1872.
Between May, 1863, and September, 1872,
Congress made a grant to the State ot
Minnesota for the pyrpose of aiding in
the construction of a railroad from.Has:-
ings, through certain countrles, to 1

g. It is in accord with we'l
established practices in the United
States. It prevents conflicts and the over-
lapping of claims. It is an act of simple
justice to the enterprise and diligence of
the pioneer, without which land settle-
ment can not be encouraged or emigra-
tion from thickly populated areas hast-
ened.

Our answer to the second problem is
also in the affirmatiye, and we hold that
even pending the in‘gﬁgatim of, b:nd

a bona

point on the western of the
State, which grant was accepted by thc
Leglslature of the State of Minnesota
and transferred to the Hastings and Da-
kota Ralflroad Company, which shortiy
thereafter definitely located its line of
road by filing its map in the office of
the commissioner of the General Land
Office.  All these proceedings occured
prior to the 30th of September, 1972. This
court declared that the almost uniform
practice of the Department has been t>
regard land upon which an entry of re-
cord, valid upon its face, has been made,
as appropriated and withdrawn frorn

on, an y
fide occupant, such as plaintiff-appellee
herein, by the priority of his applicatia
and record of his entry, he. acquires a
right to the possession of the public land
he applied for a‘\x\inn anv other publc
land applicant, which right may be pro-
tected by the possessorv action of forc:-
ble entry or by any other suitable remedy
that our rules orovide.

Having. disposed of the most impo:-
tant questions raised on this appeal, we
will mext consider the.procedural ques-

entry,-. pr P
tion, settlement, sale or grant, until the
original entry bo cancelled or be de-
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tion, i.e., that the Court of First Instance,
o oidite o of jurisdict

af
of the justice of ‘the peace favorably,
:hould~l:ave remanded the case to . that
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p Inc., pelitioner vs. the Court
o'l.'l'l.n~lc vd" MAarnre 'a-
dina, et al., respondent, G. R. No. L-
4521, Aug. 18, 1952 Montemayor, ].

1 EMPLOYERS AND . EMPLOYEES:
DISMISSAL: NOTICE; PAYMENT
OF WAGES AT THE END OF EACH
WEEK AND ON AN HOURLY BA-
S1S.—Although the laborers were paid
at the end of each week and on an
hourly basis, it does not mean that
there was a fixed term of employ-
ment. The basis of salary and pe-
riod of payment is only for the pur-
pose .of computing the amount

wages earned and the time spent.

They do not refer to the term or

period of employment. Consequently.

the contract of employment of such
laborers was wi

without a fixed. period,
and so comes within the purview of
the first paragraph of Art. 302, Code
of Commerce.

. 1D.; DISMISSAL WITHOUT JUST
- CAUSE.— The lal of a company
were notified that because of an in-
ventory. that was to be made, last-
ing about. two ' -weeks, theil

- ‘they would be recalled. They of-
fered to work after the termimation
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-and when. the laborers

of the inventory by reason of which
their work was suspended, -but the.
were not allowed to continue in their
employmient. leld: ogh no
fault of the laborers, they were la'l
off and separated from the compa-
ny's service. They were for all prac-
tical purposes dismissed without just
cause,

. 1D COMMERCIAL EMPLOYEES.—

An employer mainly dedicated in ‘he
work of building and repair of yes-

- sels and barges is a commercial com-

pany, and its emplovees and labo--
ers, commercial employees.

. ID; PAYMENT OF ONE MONTH

WAGES UPON SEPARATION FROM
SERVICE— Regardless of whethe,
the laborers are commercial or ind is-
trial or business employees. the em-
ployers should pay the laborers the
equivalent of one month wages upo1
separation from service without just
cause.

. ID.; COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RE-

LATIONS; JURISDICTIONAL RE-
QUISITES.—In order that the Cou.t
of Industrial Relations could ac-
quire jurisdiction over a case, the fol-
lowing  requisites or elements must
exist: (1) Dispute, industrial or ag-
nculgural; (2) that said dispute is
causing or likely to cause a strike or
lockout; (3) that said dispute arose
from the differences as regards wages,
dismissals, lay-offs, etc. between em-
ployees and employers; and (4)
that the number of employees or la-
borers must exceed thirty.

. ID.: LOCKOUT; EXISTENCE OF

LOCKOUT-- Where the work of th-
laborers of a pany was d

cause one, especially the latter, is
many times set in motion in hurried
anticipation of the other.

. ID.; ID.; NATURE OF THE TERM

“LOCKOUT”— A “lockout” is a term
commonly used to express all em-
ployer's act of excluding from
his plant union members hitherio
employed by him. The act may
affect all or less than all of
the employee-union members. Lock-
out, in the sense in which it is
universally used, is an act directed
at the union itself rather than at the
individual employer-members of th:
union. -

ID.; 1D ID; SHUT-DOWN AND
LOCKOUT, DISTINGUISIIED— A
“shut-down” differs from a lockout
in that in a lockout the plant conti-
nues to operate. The employee-union
members locked out are replaced by
non-union sybstitutes and the plant
continues to function. In a “shut-
down” the plant ceases to operate.
A shut-down is the willful act of the

1 himself, foll

27, this reduction below 31 as r¢-
quired by law did not- affect. 2
jurisdiction of -the industrial court,
Once the Court of Industrial Rela-
tions has acquired ijurisdiction, it
retains said jurisdiction until the case
is completely decided, and that the
reduction of the number of employees
or laborers affected to a point below
the number required by law, to in-
vest the jurisdiction of the court at
the beginning, or the amicable set-
tlement of some of the demands
originally made did not deprive said
court of jurisdiction to continue hear-
ing the case and decide it.

Cirilo R. Tiongson for petitioner.

M. A. Ferrer for respondent Court of
Industrial Relation and Carlos M. Tadi-

na et al.
DECISION

MONTEMAYOR, J.:

Petitioner Sta. Mesa Slipways &
Engineeri 0., Inc., latter to be re-

ploy 3 ing a com-
plete !ockqut as contrasted to the
it a

.

férred to as the Company, is a domes-
tic corporati ized and exist-

P 'y stopp ol op s
a result of a strike and walkout. It
can truly be said that all shut-downs
are lock-outs, but not all lock-outs
constitute or .effect shut-downs.

. ID.; COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RE-

LATIONS; STOPPAGE: RIGHT OF
LABORER TO BE HEARD BY
COURT OF INDUSTRIAL RELA-
TIONS.—A laborer who was depaiv-
ed of his work without just cause or
the occasion of stoppage of work

or y of r
has a right to be heard by. the Court
of Inds al Relati

ed in order to make proper inventory,
returned to
work after the inventory, they were
prevented from resuming work, there
was to them, for all practical pur-
poses, a lockout,

. 1D ID; STRIKE; LOCKOUT ANDY
+ STRIKE. COMPARED:— The “lock-

out” alike with the “strike”, ‘consti-
tutes a suspension' of employees’ serv.
ices, but ‘the distinction is said >
arise from-the fact that the employ-
er -rather than his employeess-is the
doer "of “the deed of suspension. In
‘both cases, a labor controversy exists,
which-is deemed intolerable by one
of the parties, but the lockout indi-
cates that the employer rather than
his employees have brought the ma:-
ter to issue.. Strikes are said statis-
tically to be. the rule, which lockouts

-; ‘constitute éxceptions, but it is probab-
- ly impossible.to determine with any

e fair.degree of conclusiveness whether

- the ‘givenr dispute has been precipi-

-_tated by. a strike or .a lockout be-
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. 1D

ID.; ID.; INDUSTRIAL DISPUTES.
—The Court of Industrial Relatios
should take cognizance of industrial
disputes arising ‘from a strike or lock-
out or those that come hereafter b.
cause the claim or damage caused
to the workers because of their dis-
missal or lay-off necessa:ily comes
after and not before the strike o.
lockout.

ID:: SUBSEQUENT REDUC-
TION OF THE NUMBER OF LABOR-
— Pending proceed-
ing in the Court of Industrial Rela-
tions, ten of the thirty-seven peti-
tioning employees or laborers with-
drew from the petition because the
had amicably settled their differen-
ces with the company, thus reducing
the number of petitioners from 37 to
27. Held: Although during the pre-

‘ceedings in the court. below, because

of the amicable settlement of the dis-

- - pitte between the petitioner and some

- 'of the dismissed labor

ers, the num-
ber of said laborers. was reduced-to

THE LAWYERS. JOURNAL

luly
ing under and by virtue of the laws of
the Philippines mainly dedicated to the
construction and revair of vessels and
barges. The respondents Macario Tadi-
na, et al., were former laborers of the
petitioner who had been employed as
carpenters, some of them having worked
for several years, under a verbal con-
tract of employment for no fixed or de-
fivite period, with wages paid to them
every end of the week. On April 26,
1949, a notice was posted at the rate
ol the compound of petiti C
to the effect that in order to make the
pioper inventory, all work would step
on Saturday, April 30, 1949; thpt the
yard would be closed for a period
two weeks or more if necessary and that
the laborers would be notified accord-
ingly as ‘o when normal work will be
resumed. The notice was signed by the
Manager. The - -¢ work di
not, however, apply to monihly person-
nel together with about forty-one laborers
and fifteen watchmen who continued
working in the compound. At the end
of the two-week period of inyentory, res-
pondents Tadina and his fellow labor-
ers had all been vaid their wages up to
the time they were laid off.

Tadina and thirty-six fellow laborers
filed an action with the Court of Indus-
trial Relations alleging th>- they were
not given by the Comnanv the one-month
notice provided for in-Art, 302 of the
Code of Commerce and asking that the
said. Companv be ordered to pay them
compensation for one.month in lieu of
stid.notice. The Company .asked for the
dismissal of the case on the ground that

December- 31, 1952



the :court ‘lacked jurisdiction everait.s It
ua_‘ comefnded that the claim-of res--
or .a

imrlieu of notice. was’ not supported by
law:and had no legal basis because said
now- d herein)

were- all vaid on an hourlv basis and
cnly for: the. number of hours of actual
work: Pending rroceedings in -the: Court,
of Industrial Relations; ten.of the thir-
5 or labor-
ers withdrew from - the pehuon because
they, had amicably settled their differen-
ces:with the Company, thus _reducing the
number of peitioners from 37 to 27
which ls Iess than the thlrtv-one (3|)

d by

103. The mation for dismissal was de-
nied and after due hearing and the sub-
mission of a partial stipulation of facts,
the industrial court decided in favor of
the petmoners and ordered the Compa-
ny to pay them : (petitioners) the equiva-
lent of their. wages for one month, with
legal interest.: The company has now
filed this. petition. for certinrari to review
that decision of the lower court, present-
ing the following .questions of law:

1. Is_Art. 302 of the Code of Commerce
of the Philippines applicable 1a this
particular case?

© 2. Does the respondent Court of Indus-
trial Relations have jurisdiction. to
decide and settle this ‘case?

* Article 302 of the Code of Cammerce
reads as follows:

“ART. 302.—In cases in which the con-
tract does not have a fixed period, any
of the parties may it, udvising

ment was ‘with-a term, the term being
‘temporary “or' on- the -monthly- or >daily.
basis. The Court: there: said::

“X x X X. The stated.computation or
manner of payment, whether monthly
or . dally, does not represent nor deter-
mine a special time of employment. ‘Thus,
a commerclal employee may be employ-
ed for one year and yet recelve his sa-
lary on the daily or weekly or monthly
or other basis.

“Appellants allege that the use of the
word ‘temporary’ in  the contracts of
services .of some of the plaintiffs shows
that their employment was with a term,
and the term was ‘temporary, on a day
to day basis’ The record discloses that
this conclusion is unwarranted. The
contracts simply say — 'you are. hereby
employed . as temporary guard with a
compensation at the rate of ¥5.00 a day
...” The word special time fixed in
the contracts referred to in Article 302
of the Code of Commerce. The daily
basis therein stipulated is for the com-
putation of pay, and is not necessarily
the perlod of employment. Hence, this
Court holds that plaintiffs appellants
come within the purview of Article 302
of the Code of Commerce.”

In the present case, it may also be
said that although the laborers were paid
at the end of each week and on an hour-
ly. basis, it does not mean that there was
afixed term .of employment. The basis
of salary and peried cf payment is only
for the purpose of computing the amount
of wages earned and the time spent. They

o not refu‘ to the term or period of em-

the other’ thereot one month in advance.

The factory or shop clerk shall "have
a right, in this case, to the salarycor-
responding to sald ‘month.”

Under the. first ‘question of the appli-
cability of Art. 382 of the present case,

. we od that
the

of empl
Tadina and his fellow laborers wa's with-
out a fixed period, and so come within
the purview of the first paragraph of
Art. 302, Code of Commerce.

Penuoner says that the decision of .
I Cou

at the employ

of the. laborers mvolvucl herein_was .not
without a fixed period because they were
gud at.the end of every week and:there-
ore they may. be considered as having
been hired by the-week, and besides, the
amount of .payment was based on the
number .of :hours of work performed: A
similar question -has ‘heretofore been sub-
mitted for- determination bv this- Court.
. the case of Sanchez, et al. v. Harry
Lvons Construction : Inc. et al, G. R,
No. L-2779, October 18, 1950, where
th.e. laborers :involved were paid some
on.a monthly basis such as P250 a
month while others were paid :P5.00 a
day, it was there- contended that . Art.
of the: Commerce did: not
apply inasmuch as: same- of the laborers
invoking- the. provisiors+.of- said -article
were: paid by the month -and .othen by
the day, and that- therefore their employ-

December 31, 1952 -

the Ind
finding that the respondent laborers were
dismissed without just cause and so, their
case does not come within the provisions
of the second part of Article 302. It is
a fact, however, that through no fault -of
the laborer, thev were laid off and se-
parated from the petitioner’s service.
They offered to work after the termina-
tion of. the inventory by reason of ‘which

their-werk ‘was ‘susbended Imt thev ‘were

for all p d with-

rt does not’contain a

Philippine: Decisiane

héld- that -before. an-.employee icaa- in-..
voke the. provisions. of \Art.- 302 -of .the: .
Code merce: he must show that.
he is»a comm employee.  Unfar-
tunately.‘ we -are unable to read said case- .
because it does not anpear to-have been.-
published in . the Philippine . Reports or
in the Official Gazette and we are un- -
able to find.it among our, records that..
survived the last war. But granting that .
there was such a rulmg by this. Court, ..
we alsa find that in the case of Philip-
pine Trust Compan vs." Smith- Naviga-
ticn Company, 66 Phil. 277 ‘promulgat- -
ed much later on September -30, 1938,
‘this Court held or rather stated in-the -
course of the -decision that the contract -
oi repair of vessels entered -into-between
the appellae Smith ‘Navigation Compa- *
ry and the intervenor-apoellant ‘EF Va-
radero' de’ Manila which later -companv,
by the way was also engaged in -the -
biilding and repair of vessels, lik=-the -
pctmoner herein, was a commerelal tian-
saction and as such should be-governed.:
first by the provisions .of the Code -of
Commerce.. One possible implication
from said. holding mught be that_an. em- -
ployer like the petitioner, engaged in the .
work of building and repair of vessgls. N
is: a commercial companv, and -its.em-
loyees. and: laborers, commercial em--
lovees. But xegardlm of whether the
laborers in the rresent case are commer-
cial or industrial or business employees,
the employer should we belleveg pay
hem the eq of one
upon separation from service without just
cause. In the first place, from- the-stand-
point of the laborer or employee,-one em-
ployed by an industrial or business:con-
cerned is as much entitled to the benefits
of the law and desérves: his -one mosth
pay a's one employed -by-a merchant. In
the second place, regardless of the strict..
apphcalnllty or non-applicabilly of Aft.
, the.Court of In al Relations
by reason of its general jurisdiction ‘and:
authority to decide labor disputes, “the.
amount of salary -or wages to bé paid
lvborers and “employees, to determine
their living .conditions. has been deciding.
not only the minimum that the employer
should pay .its employees but also grant-
ine_them even sick and vacation leave:
wnh pay. without: anv express legal, pro-
vision.: A month’s pay upon separation”
from service without inst cause and with-
out nouu may also. in the discretion, of *

out )ust cause.

Lastlv, petitioner contends that Art.
302 is no- applicable here because the
laborers were not commercial employees
sa asito warrant the aoplication of !he
provisions of- the: Code of.

"the Ind 1 Court be granted provided
that said discretion is not abused.

In the case-of Sanchez et al. v. Harry
Lyonrs -Construction Co., et. al,, supra,
while. one of ‘the . companies- therein. in-
cluded as - defendam-appellunh. namely,
the-. Inc. .was..en-

cites. the case.-of Juan Auribas vs. Ha-
waiian-Philippine Co., G. R. No. 37219,
dated August 23, 1923, purporting. to

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

aged in buymg surplus - property, re-
gnmng -and then selling them to. the. pu-
blic for which reason it might be readily
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other company ‘Harry Ly;u ém;trm- .

tion Co., Inc. was engaged in the con-
struction-of roads.and bridges, a business
hardly to be ded ial

y-and '

the - lockout- indicates that the employer -

rather. than his employees have brought
the matter. to issue.. Strikes are sald
statistically to be the rule, while lockouts
constitute exceptions, but it is probably

to with any fair

ded as cs
still, the employees of both companies
were all idered ial employ
ees, entitled to the equivalent of one
month pay, because of separation from
service without notice.

Again, in the case of Lopez v. Roces,
as Manager of the People’s Homesite
Corporation, 73 Phil. 605, the Supreme

urt held that when the ome month,
notice is. not given, not only the factor
or shop clerk, but anv employee dis-
tharged without just cause is entitled to

- an indemnity which mav be a month’s
salary, -and that the Homesite Corpora-
tion being a business company, its chauf-
feur dismissed without notice may be con-
sidered as a commercial employee enti-
tled to one month pay.

Going to the second question, that of
jurisdiction of the Court of Industrial Re-
ations, petitioner - contends that in ac-
ccrdance with Chapter I, Section 1 and
Chapter II, Section 4 of the Common-
weaﬁh Act No. 103, in order that the
CiR could acquire jurisdiction over a
case, the foll isites or el
must exist:

1. Dispute industrial or agr zultural;

2. Sald dispute is causing or likaly to

lockout;

3.-.Sald dispute arose from differences

as regards wages, dlsmissals, lay-
offs, etc. between employees und em-
ployers; and

4. .The number of employees or lahorers

must exceed thirty.

We agree with the respondent Court that
all the four elements edumerated above
were present. There was an industrial

dispute between the petitioner and its-
difer--

laborers; said dispute arose from
ences as regards dismissal antlﬂlay-_t‘:ff.

degree of conclusiveness whether the
glven dispute has been precipitated by
a strike or a lockout because one, espe-
clally the latter, iIs many times set in
motion in hurrled anticipation of the
other.” (Teller, Labor Disputes and Col-
lective Bargaining, Vol. I, p. 246).
“A ‘lockout’ is & term commonly used
to express an employer's act of exclud-
“ing from his’ plant union members hi-
therto employed by him. The act may
affect all or less than all of the employee-
union members. Lockout, in the sense
in which it is universally used, is an act
" directed at the union itself rather than
at the individual employer-members of
the union. x x X
L A
“A ‘shut-down’ differs from a lockout
in that in a lock-out the plant continues
to operate. The employee-union mem-
bers locked out are replaced by non-
union substitutes and the palnt confinues
to function. In a ‘shut-down’ the plant
ceases to operate. A shut-down is the
wilful act of the employer himself, fol-
lowing a complete lock-out as contracted

As to the numbet of laborers involv-
ed in the oresent case,. al during
tlie proceedings. in the court below, be-
cause of the amicable settlement: of the
dispute b petitioner and some
of the dismissed laborers, the number of-
said laborers was reduced to.27, this re-
duction below 31 as required by law
did not ‘affect the jurisdiction of the in-
Hustrial court. In the case of Pepsicola,
Inc. v. National Labor Union, G. R.
No. L-1500, 46 O. G. (Sup.) No. 1,
p: 130 and -‘Manila Hotel Employees
Association v. Manila Hotel, 73 Phil.
374, this Court laid down the doctrine
to the effect that once the Court of In- -
dustrial Relations has acquired jurisdic- -
tion, it retains said jurisdiction until the
case is completely decided, and thaz the
reduction of the number of eraployces or
laborers affected to a point below the .
‘number required by law, to invest the
jurisdiction of the court at the beginning,
o1 the amicable settlement of some of the
demands originally made did not deprive .
said court of jurisdiction to continue hear-
ing the case and decide it.

In view of the foregoing, the decision
appealed from is hereby affirmed, with
costs.

Paras, C. J., Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla,
Tuason, Baustista Angelo, and Labrador

to the of

as a result of a strike arfd walkout. It
can truly be aid that all shut-downs are
lock-outs, but not all lock-outs consti-
tute or effect shut-downs.” (Rothenberg,
Labor Relations, pp. 68-59.)

Of course, ordinarily, a lockout refers
to union members, and is used to_ disci-
pine laborers for their union_activities,
o1 1s directed at the union itself; and in
the present case there is no evidence about
the union affiliation of Tadina and his
fellow laborers, or the real reason behind
their ouster and exclusion from work.
But. whatever the reason, to them there
was ‘'stoppage of work, a lockout
within theti: eomemp_lajtion‘of_ thje law

and the number of employ

thirty-seven — was more than the mini--

mum required by the law. The ‘only
eiement ‘which may be subject to doubt
is whether or not the dispute is causing
or is likely to cause strike but there was
a sort of lockout. When the 37 labor-
ers returned to work after the inventory

and when prevented from resuming |worlt.-

e ol
of the CIA and its intervention if sought.

In the case of Yellow Taxi and Pa-
ug Transportation Worker’'s Union
(CLO) v. Manila Yellow Taxi Cab.
Company, Inc., 45 O. G. 4856, this
Court held that a laborer who was. de-
prived of his work without just cause on
the i of work or tem-

there was to them, for all p pur-
poses, a lockout.
The ‘lockout’ allke with the istrike,’
of

a
services, but the distinction is. said to
- arise from the fact that the emrloyer:
rather ‘than his employees [6 the doer of.
the deed of suspension. In both cases, a'
labor controversy exists, which 1s'deem-

ed Intolerable by-one of the partles, but

642

porary cessation of operatiops (pare) has
a right to be heard by the Court of In-
dustrial Relations, ‘It further held that
said court should take cognizance of in-
dustral disputes arising from a strike or.
lockout or those that come thereafter be-
cause the claim or damgge caused to-
the workers because of their dismissal or:
lay-off necessarily’ comes’ after and not
before the strike or lockout. .

THE -LAWYERS- JOURNAL

J/.. concurred.

Meusrs.  Justices Feria, Reyes and
Jugo did not take part.

m

Laureto A. Talaroc, petitioner-appel-

lee, vs. Alejandro D. Uy, respondeni-a
pellant, G." R. L-5397, September 26,

1952, Tuason, | : )
1. ELECTIONS; CITIZENSHIP OF
ELECTED CANDIDATES— U was
elected municipal mayor of Manti-
cao, Misamis Oriental on November-

13, 1951. T, one of the defeated
.-candidates for the same office, con-
tested the. election of U on the
ground that the latter is a Chinese
ional and therefore ineligible to
the office of the municipal mayor. U
was born on January 26, 1912 in

the icipali Iligan, provis

of Lanao, of Chinese father and of
Filipino mother. His father and mo-
ther were married on March 3, 1914
in Iligan, The father died in thi:
municipality- on February .17, 1917
and the mother died on August 29,.
1949 in the municipality of Manti-
cao, Misamis Oriental. U had voted
in -the previous elections. and had
held various positions.in the gov-
ernment, Held: U i:a Filipino citi-
zen and eligible to the office’ of mu-
nicipal mayor. e Became a Phil-
- ippine -citizen at least upon his fa-
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" death. Commonwealth Act
tNhf: 63, providing a method for re-
f:un B}nhppmu citizenship by

ilipino woman in such case, was

when U’s mother had been

a wndow for 19 years and U had
been of age three years, and this
law carries no provision giving if
m&chve effect. lthwouldhlale:ithlej

air nor good policy to
an 3hen a:ter :lm:d exsrcxedcgn,e
privileges of citizenship: and the
ernment . had confirmed his Philip-

pine citizenship on the faith of legtl
pnnmplgs that had the farce of taw.

Claro M. Recto for appellant.
Justiniana R. Borja for appellee.
DECISION
TUASON, J.:

The election of Alejandro D. U;
the office of municipal mayor of Man-
ticao, Misamis Oriental, on November
}3, 1951; brought the instant action of
quo warranto in d1e Court of First Ins-

ing Municipal Treasurer de Lagait, en
1942 a 1943 (Exh. 6); ademas de haber
servido al 120th Infantry Regiment de la
guerrilla, y algun tiempo ‘Tax collec~
tor’ del gobierno de ocupacion japcnesa,
en esta provincia de Misamis Oricntal.”

These facts also appear uncontrovert-
ed in evidence: One of the respondent’s
brothers, Pedro D. Uy, before the war
and up to this time has been occupymg
the position of income tax examiner of
the Bureau of Internal Revenue. His
cther brother, Jose D. Uy, is a practis-
ing certified public amuntant. and be-
fore the war was the accountant of the
National’ Abaca and Fiber Corporation
(NAF CO). Hls other brother, Dr. Vic-
torio Uy, is a practising physician,
ard, I:efore the war, was charity physi-
cian in Initao and later a physictan in
the rovincial hospital. During the war,

ly was a captain in the Philippine
army His younger brother was a lieu-
tenant in the 120th Infantry Regiment
of the Guerrilas. All 'his brothers mar-
ried Filipina girls and they were never
identified with any Chmue_' political or

tance of that p
was Laureto A, Talaroc, one of the de-
feated candidates for the same office,

the grounds. of the petition were

social "s father
acquired properties. in edgut His mo-
ther, who never remarri campaigned

fer woman suﬁﬁ‘age in 1935 and voted
in the

that he respondent is a Chinese
and therefore ineligible. The cour: be-
low found the petition well founded and
declared the posmoh in quedon va-
cant.

The personal circumstancds of the
respondent as. found by the court are not
in dispute. They are as follows:

“Estan establecidas por las pruebas, ¥
admitidas por las partes, que Alejandro

D. Uy nacio en Enero 28, 1912, «n él

municipio de Iligan, provincia de Lanao

(Exhihito 1), de padre chino, Uy Plang-

co; y de macre Filipina, Ursula Diako,
' cuando convivian estos como marido ¥y

mujer, pero despues contrajeron matrl-
monio eclesiastico al Marzo 3, 19i4, en
dicho pueblo (Exhiblto 9). Tuvieron sie-
te hijos, siendo el recurrido Alejandro

D:. Uy el 5.0 hijo. Uy Piangco, nat!vo de

Chuitao, Amoy, China, nunca se ausen-

to desde que llego hacia 1893 o 1895, en

Filipinas hasta su fallecimiento el Fe-

brero 17, 1917, en TNigan, Lanao, donde

The respondems contentions, which
the court below. rejected, wexe: that his
father was a. subiect of Spain om. April
L1, 1899 by virtue of Article 17 of the
Civil Code; that his mother ipso facto
reacquired her Filipino citizenship 'upon
the death of her husband on February
17, 1917, and the child followed: her ci-
meml-np. and that the respondent is a
citizen of the Philippines by the mere
fact of his birth therein. His Honor the
Judge noted that, while under the Roa

doctrine (Roa v. Insular Collector of
Customs, 23 Phil. 315), Alejandro D.
Uy would be a Filipino citizen negard-
less of the nationality of his 'oare'n's. ye

Philigpine Decinions;

ard returned ‘in 1910,

then. about 21 years md 3 months
age. He was. denied admission by the
board of special inquiry, whose decision
was affirmed by the Court of First Ins-
tance in habeas corpus proceedings.

This Court héld that Artiele 17 of the
Civil Cade “is sufficient to show that
the first paragraph affirms and recognizes
the principle of nationality by place of
birth, jus soli.” Citing- various. decisions,
authorities, and opinions of the United
States Attorney General, if found that
the decided weight ‘of authority was to
the effect that the marriage of an. Amer-
ican weman with an alien conferred his
rationality upon her during coverture;
that upon the dissolution of the marriage
by death of the husband, the wife re-
verted, ipso facto, to her former status,
unless. her conduct or-acts showed: that
she elected to retain: the nationality of
her husband, and that where the widow-
ea mother herself thus reacquire her for-
mer nationality, her children, she being
their natural guardian, should follow her
nationality with proviso that they
may elect for themselves upon reaching
majority.

The Roa decision, promulgated on
October 30 |9|Z set g precedent that
was, unif ca-
ses. This long line of décmom applied
the principle of jus soli up to September
16, 1947, when that panciple was re-
ncunce in the cases. of Tan Cheng v.
Secretary of Labor and Swee Sang v.

The Commonwealth of the Philippines
cited in the appealed- decision.

The:ze two decision ale not, in our opi-
pion, controlling in this case.

Aticle IV, entitled “Citizenship,” of
the Constitution provides:

“Section 1. The following are citizens
of “the' Philippines:
“(1) These who are citizens o the

he said, this d
T'an Chen v. Secretaxv oﬁ Labor, G. R

.No. 47616, September 6, 1947; Swee

Sang vs. The Commonwealth of the
Philippines, G. R. No. 47625, deoided
with Tan Chong vs. Secretary of La-
ber; and V'illghgrmqsa vs. The Com-

estuvo murio
con posterioridad, el Agosto 29, 1949, en
el munieipio de Mantlcao, Misamis Orien-
tal: (Exhibit 3). Aparece tambien: gue el
recurrido Alejandro D. Uy nunca fue a
China y'he votado en las anterlores elec-
clones verificadas en el pais. y ha de-
sempenado empleos como. Inspector del
“Bureau of Plant Industry” en 1943
(Exh. 4); en los anos’ 1935, 1946, 1947,
maestro bajo el Bureau of Public Schools,
en Manticao District (Exhs, 5 y 5-a);
filing clerk en la Tesoreria. Municinal de
Initao, en 1935 al 1945 (Exh. 4); y Act-

December 31, 1952

. No. L-
1663, March 31, 1948.
It may be recalled that in the case

of Roa vs. Insular Collector of Customs, ,

supra, the petitioner was born in_lawful
wedl in the Philippines on Julv 6,
1889, his father being a native of China
and his mother a-Filipina. His father was
domiciled in this eountry up to the year
1895’ when he ‘went to- China and never
returned, dying there abaut 1900. In
ay, 1901, Roa, who was then a mi-
nor, was seat to China by his widowed
er for the sole purpese of studying,
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Islands at the time. of the
adoption of this Constitution.

On the strength, of tlm Roa doctrine,
D. Uy was_con-
sldend a tull-p[edged Philippine citizen
on the date of the adoption of the Con-
stitution, when jus, soli has been the pre-
vailing doctrine. “With it,” as Mr. Jus-
tice Laurel said in Ramon Torres et al.
ve. Tan Chim, hil 519, “the bench
and the bar were familiar. The mem-
bers of the Constitwlional Convention
were- also, aware oft this rule, and jn ab-
rogating the dectrine laid down in thc
Roa case, by making the jus san,
the predominating principle in the
mination of Philippine citizenship, they
did not intend to exclude these whe, in
the situation of Tranquilino Roa, were
citizens of the Philippines by judicial de-
claration at the time of the adoption of
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the Constitution, This, *the Court went

on to say,” is apparent from the fol-

lowing of the proceedings of the

Constitnﬁcmﬁ Convention when Atticle
IV of the Constitution was discussed:

“Delegate Aruego.—Mr. President, may

1 just have one question? May I ask Mr.

the Secretary of Justice. See also Opi-
nion No. 18, series of 1942, of the Com-
missioner of Justice, 1942 Off. Gaz.,
September.)

Cut out of the same pattern and de-
serving of the same consideration i¢ the
ition that Alejandro D. Uy

Roxas If, under this that
you have, all children born in the Phil-
ippines before the adoption of the Con-
stitution was Included?

“Delegate Roxas.- — No, sir: that is
to say, it they are citizens in accordance
with the present law, they will be citi-
zens.

“Delegate Aruego.—But as I sall they
are cliizens by judicial decisions.

“Delegate Roxas.—It they are ci‘izens
now by judicial decisions, they will be
citizens, .

“Delegate  Aruego.—I should llke to
make it clear that we are voting «n the
proposition so that it will include all
those born in the Philippines, regardless
of their parentage, because I have heard
some here to the
tion in toto.of the doctrine of jus soli.
‘There are many who do not weant to in-
clude, as are included in the proposi-
tlon we are voting upon X x X

“IL should Hke to find out from the
gentleman from Capiz if that proposi-

- tion would make Filipino citizens of
children of Chinese parents born last
year or this year.

“Delegate Roxas.—No, because !y the
laws of the Philippine Islands, they are
not Filipino citizens now.” (Record of

the of the C
Conventlon, Session of November 26,
1934.)

Unlike the Tan Chong case, the here-
.in appellant Uy had attained the age of

jority when the Constitution went in-
to effect, and had been allowed to cxer-
‘cise the right suffrage, to hold pu-
blic offices, and to take the oath of alle-
giance to the Commonwealth Govern-
ment or Republic of the Philippines.

The Tan Chong decision itself makes
this express reservation: “Needless to
say, this decision is not intended or de-
signed to deprive, as it can not divest,
of their Filipino citizenship, those who
‘have been dpeclared to be Filipino citi-
zens, or upon whom such citizenship had
‘been conferred by the courts because of
-the doctrine or principle of res adjudi-

cata.” Certainly, it would neither be .

fair nor good policy to hold the respon-
dent an alien after he exercised the
privileges of citizenship and the Govern-
ment had confirmed his Philippine citi-
zenship on the faith of legal principles
that had the force of law .On several
occasions the Secretary of Justice had
‘declared as Filipino citizens persons si-
milarly circumstanced as hereéin res-
pondent. (Opinion 40, series of 1940, of
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prop at Alejand )
came a Philippine citizen at least upon
his father’s death,

It has been seen that, according to the
rule of the Roa case, a Filipino woman
married to a  Chinese ipso faclo reac-
quired her Filipino citizen upon her hus-
band’s demite 'and that thereafter her
mjpnor children’s ionalifty t i

ne se hizo -automaticamente ciudadana
filipina, -pues el articulo 32 de-Codigo
Civil Espafiol entonces vigente dispone
que la espafiola (filipina) que casare
con extranjero podra, disuehto el matri-
monio, k la nacionalidad espaii
la (filipina) llenando los requisitos ex-
presados en el articulo anterior, y estos
lR“ (son: iac )l .(b)Jdelc‘I"iudn
al Reino (repatriacion); aran
sd Juntad d‘ 'R .Ia ddadant
fihpina; y (c) renunciando la proteccion
del pabellon del pais de su marido. La
primera condicion esta practicamente cum-
lida porque Diabo no salio nunca de
ilipinas; pero no esta probado que hu-
biese declarad dor civil

ally followed that of the mother’s. This
rule was not changed by the adoption
of the jus sanguini -doctrine, and was in
force until’ Commonwealth Act No. 63
went into effect in 1936, by which the
Legislature, for the first time, provided a
n-eas for regaining , Philippines citi-
zenship by Filipino women in such ca-
ses. It is to be noted that when Com-
monwealth Act No. 63 was passed Ur-
sula Diabo had been a widow for 19
years and Alejandro D. Dy had been
of age three years, and that the new law

ante el registrad
de su residencia aue era su intencion re-
cobrar la ciudadania filipina, ni que hu-
biese renunciado la oroteccion de la ban-
dera china. Desde el 26 de noviembte
de 1930 en que se establecio el registro
civil en Filipinas, siendo registrador ci-
vil local el tesorero municipal; hasta el
28 de agosto de 1949 en que fallecio—
mas de dieciocho afios — Ursula Diabo
tenia amplia oportunidad de hacer la
declaracion que exige el articulo 21 de
Codigo Civil, pero no lo ha hecho; su
silencio da lugar a la presuncion de que

carries no provision giving it deseo de la ciuda-
effect. d'al&ia d:le. su .]px.aridol. P.grcal recobrar la

Thoe coion ke spathons Sion ot e &
consideration of the rest of the several Jemu su deseo indubitable de re-

assignments of error by the appellant upon
which we refrain to express an opinion.

The decision of the lower court is re-
versed and the respondent and appellant
declared a Filipino citizen and eligible
t> the office of municipal mayor. The
petitioner and apoellee will pay the costs
oi both instances.

Paras, C7  Bengzon, Montemayor
and Bautista Angelo, concurred.

PABLO, M., concurrente:

Opino que Alejandro D. Uy nacio
como ciudadano filipino en 28 de cnero
de 1912 en Iligan, Lanao, porque su

.madre Ursula Diabo no estaba casada

legalmente con Uy Piangco, pues el hi-
jo natural sigue la ciudadania de su
madre (Serra contra Republica de Fi-
lipinas, G. R. No. L-4223, mayo 12,
1952); pero al casarse ella con Uy
Piangco en 3 de marzo de 1914, Ale-
jandro D. Uy quedo legitimado por sub-
siguiente matrimonio (Art. 120, Cod.
Civ. Esp.); ipso facto se habia hecho
ciudadano chino porque como menor de
edad, tenia que seguir la nacionalidad
de su padre legitimo (Art. 18, Cod.
Cwv. Esp.), como Ursila siguio la de
su marido (Art. 22, Cod. Civ. Esp.).

Al fallecimiento de Uy Piangeo en
17 de febrero de 1917, Ursula Diabo
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adquirir su antigua ciudadania y per-
der la de su finado marido; por tento,
Alejandro D. Uy tamp dquiri
la ciudadania filivina per el mera he-
cho de haber quedado viuda su madre.

Es principio universalg "
que la expatriacion es derecho inhe
a todos. Los hijos de un extranjero na-
cidos en Filipinas deben manif,gtar el
encargado del Registro civil dentro del
afio siguiente a su mayor edad o eman-
cipacion, si desean optar por la ciuda-
dania_de su pais natal (Art. 19, Cod.
iv. .). Aunque no aparece que ha
hecho tal manifestacion al registrador
civil, Alejandro D. Uy eiercito, sin em-
bargo, el derecho de sufragio “en las
anteriores eleccion verificadas en el pais”
al tener edad competente para votar. Con
ello demostro que gueria adoptar la ciu-
dadania del pais de su nacimiento, pre-
firiendola a la de su padre. Cuando el
1935 Alejandro D. Uy sirvio al gobier-
no como maestro de escuela bajo el De-
partamento de Instruccion Publica, des-
pues escribiente en la tesoreria_municipal
de Initao.en 1937, y mas tarde tesorero
de Lugait en 1942 a 1943, y cuando,
con exposicion de su vida, ingreso en las
Filas del 120.0 Regimiento de Infanteria
de las guerrillas, demosiro de una mane-
ra clara e inequivoca que preferia ser
ciudadano filipino a ser ciudadano chi-
no.

December 21, 1952



Aléjandro D. Uy. de -acuerdo <on, el
Cedigo Civil -antiguo .es ciudadano fi-
lipino perque opto serlo al llegar- a mayer.

Tambien. es ciudadane filipino. por
disposicion cons'itucional. -Al votar “en
las elecciones verificadas .en el pais al
llegar a la mayor edad, demostro que
quiso abrazar la uuda.dama lﬁllpmn La
Constitucion dice asi: “Son ciudadanos
filipinos: x x x (4) los que, siendo hijos

ma ciudadania- filipina, op-
taren por esta al llegar a la mayor edad.”
(Art. 4,Titulo IV, Constitucion). Bue-
no es hacer constar que existe error en
esta disposicion: debe decirse filipma.”
La fillipina que se casa con un extran-
jero sigue la ciudadania de su mando.
por el simple hecho del m’alnlnomo pier-
de la ciudadania filipina y'se hace ex-
tranjera: no puede coatinuar en la con-
dicion de ciudadana filipina por expre-
sa disposicion de la ley, pero no pierde
Ia nacionalidad filipina.
_ Por las razones expuestas, 'y, no por
otras, Alejandro D. Uy adquirio la ciu-
dadania filipina.

PADILLA, J., concurring.

" I would rest the judgment in this case
on the undisputed fact that the respond-
ent was born. out of wedlock in Iligan,
Lanao, on 28, January 1912 of a Fi-
livino mcther and a Chinesé father who
were married on March 1914 and
that_his_father dled on 17 February
1917. He was a Filipino citizen, became
Chinc.e citizén when his father and mo-
ther were ‘married, and reacquired his
original citizenship on the death of his
father, because bcing under age he fol-
lowed the citizenshio of his mo her who

ired her Fiiivino' citizenship of his
mother whe reacauired her Filipino citi-
zenship ur<n the death of her husband
and never remarried.

I do not agree to the proposition that
persons born in this country of alien pa-
rentage whose father is an alien must
be deemed Filipino . citizens under and
by virtue of the doctrine laid down in
the case.of Roa v. Collector-of Customs,
25 Phil. 315. Precisely, the judgment in
the cases of Tan Chong )2 The Secre-
tary of Labor and Lam Swee Sang v,

e Commonwealth of the Philippines,
45 O:G. 1269, holds that as the doc-
trine laid down in ‘the case of Roa v.

~-Collector of CustomS. supra, is-in con-
Hict. with the law in force at. the time it
must be abandoned. Jose Tan Chong
invoked also the benefit, of the doctrine
in the Roa v. Collector of Cusos case.
ere is only an excention to the rule
laid down in the case of Tan Chong v.
The Secretary of Labor and Lam Swee
Sang v. The Commonwealh of the
Philippines, supra.

I concur in tlns cpinion,
(Sgd) ALEJO LXBRADOW’
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Hon. Agustin P. Montesa, et al ap-
pellants, vs.'Manila Cordage Co., appel-
lee, . L4559, September 19, 1952,

ablo,

1 COURT; JURISDICTION: INTER-
ERENCE  WITH COORDINATE
coua‘r EXCEPTION—A judge of

a branch of the court should not an-
nul the order issued by another judge.

of difference branch of the same court,
because both of them are ]udgu of

Rhilippine Decisions

cion de una -orden. de .interdigto : preli-
mnnu para -que -los, demﬂmh .espe-
el , Sheriff, jesc dg con-
tinuar reteniendo el ‘Buick y que. se:lq
etregasen .a ellos; el ‘Hon, Juez Mon-
tesa expidio ex parte la on‘.len pedida
en cumplimienio con dicha order, el She-
riff de Manila. entrego el automovil a
los demandantes. Al enterarse de esta,
la Manila Cordage Company presento
una mocion yrgente pidiendo la disolu-
cion de la orden de interdicto expedida
por dicho Juez, alegando que este se ha-

bia dido en su al expe-

the same category and act
dently but cooanately. unless lhe
second judge acts in place of the
first judge in the same proceedings.
2. ID.; 1D ATTACHMENT DELIV-
ERY OF PERSONAL PROPERTY.—
Under section 2(c), Rule 62 of tne
Rules of Court, a court has no juris-
diction to order the delivery of perso-
nal property to the plaintiff if the’
property is under attachment

Estanislao A. chandez for pention-
ers,

Ross, Selph, Cairascoso- & Janda and
Defin L. Gonzalez for respondent.

DECISION
PABLO, J:

Se trata de und aoelacion interpues-
ta por el Hon. Juez Montesa, Hao Yu,
Guan alias A. Lao Roldan y Rufino’
Ibafiez_contra una _resolucion del Tri-
bunal de Apelacion.

En 7 de marzo de 1950 el Shenff de
Manila, cumplieado la order expedida
eu la causa civil No. 9126 del Juzgado
ce Primera Instancia de esta ciudad, ti-
tulada Manila Cerdage Company con-
tra Yu Bon Chiong, embargo: el automo-
vil Buick an con placa No. 1074
(afio 1950) de. Yu Bon Chiong que era
d2mandado ea dicha causa.

En 8 de marzo Hao Yu Guan alias
A. Lao Roldan y Rufino, Ibafiez pre-
sentaron una reclamacion de terceria ca-
da uno, alezando el primero que €l au-
tomovil estaba hipotecado, a su favor
hipoteca de bienes muebles, art. 4, Ley
(3952), v el segundo, que es conduefio

e dicho vehiculo. El She:iff advirtio a
la Manila Cordage Company que levan-
taria el embargo del automovil si ella
nc prestaba fianza correspondiente. Por
tal motivo, la Fidelity & Surety Co., a
peticion*de Manila Cordage Company.
presto fianza de acuerdo -con el articulo
14, Regla 59:

., En.17 de marzo los terceristas presen-.
taron .una demanda en el Juzgado de
Primera Instancia de Manila contra la
Manila Cordage Company, la Fidehty: &
Surety Co., y el Sheriff de Manila (cau-
sa civil Np. 10624), pidiendo la expedi-
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dir dicha orden; que dicho automovll
estaba ya preventivamente embargado en
la causa civil No. 9126 por orden vali-
da expedida por el Hon. Juez Macada-
eg. Dicha mocion urgente habia sido de
negada por el Hon. Juez Pecson en 18
de  abril y la mocion de recontidera-
cion desestimada por el Hoti.’ Juez Mon-
tesa en 23 de mayo.

La Manila Cordage Co., acudio al
Tribunal ‘de Apelacion por medio del
recurso de certiorari_contra ¢l Hon. Jnez

y ‘otros, pidiendo la
de la orden expechda por-dicho ]u\-z en
la causa No. 24.

Despues de oonsderar Ias razone« de
una y oira paite, el Tribunal de Apela-
cion revoco en.29 de diciembre de !950:
la orden del Hon. Juez Moniesa que
disolvia: la orden de bngo preyentivo
dictada por el Juez -Macadaeg. Con-
tra esta resolucion, el Hon. Juez Mon-
tesa y otros acuden en apelacion a este
“Tribunal por medio d:. certiorari.

Los. recurrentes arguyen que Ia doc—»
trina seatada en ¢l asunto de C*bugao Y
otro contra . Del Rosario 'y otro, 3 en
Hubahib contra Insular Drug Co, h:
sido ya revocada por-la decision chctada
en Mercado 'y otros contra Ocampo, y
sostienen’ que_ el juez de:una sala el:le
expedir una orden anulando la orden de
otro ‘juez de-otra sala del mismo ]uzga-
do de primera instancia,

Analicemos la; tres - causas, ciudn‘s

El Juez de la Segunda Sala del Juz-
gado ‘de Primera Instancia de’ Manila
condeno al demandado en la causa cml
No. 18451, Cabigao confra Lim y Pi
eda a pagar al demandante la suma
dc ™379.00 can intereses y costas. La,
decision fue confirmada 'por”este Tibu-
nal en 12 de agosto de 1922; el Juez
de la Segunda gala cxlpldlo el manda-
miento de ejecucion en 11 de octubre de
1922; el Sheriff de la ciudad trabo em-
bargo sobre los bienes del demandado
Lim y Pineda; en . I8 del mismo mes
le y Pmeda Dl o en la Snla Primera
un ib con-
tra el Sheriff y dicho Juez .expidio la
oiden_pedida.
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Cabigao'y otro acudieron a esta Su-
perioridad pidiendo en un recurso de in-
hibicion que se ordenase al Juez de la
Primera Sala que desistiese de intervenir
en la ejecucion de la Sentencia dictada
en la causa civil No. 18451, y este
Tribunal, despues de sir a las. partes,
declaro nulo y sin ning;m._valot el _,“f,"

tado otro juez del mismo juzgado, sin
que ello se infrinja el principio de
coordinacion, y que la porma que debe
servir de guia debe ser la de si el juez
-que dicto la primera orden tenia facul-
tad para modificarla o dejarla sin efecto,
en cuyo caso el otro juez que la lnod]i-

mandato ‘de la ley, ni embargados en
virtud jecuci b p i
contra los bienes del demandante, o en
caso de serlo asi; que son bienes exentos
de embargo; y (d) que preste una fian-
za a favor del demandado por el doble
velor de los b'ienels que reclama para
a

ico o anulo debe tener iguall a
misma facultad. Y la razon de la doc-

terdicto p p
por el Juez recurrido (el de la Primera
Sala) declarando que “Las varias salas
del Juzgado de imera Instancia de

aniila son, en cierto sentido, juzgados
de - jurisdiccion coordinada; v el, permi-

Yrina asi sentada consiste sencillamente
en que ambos juéces actuan en el mis-

ion de los mismos
si asi se dispusiere en la’
scntencia, y para el pago a dicho de-

dad lqui idad que pue-
da b } n’

€
al d dad,

mo juzgado v es el mismo juzgado el
Yue ha modificado o anulado la orden.

v
“Refiriend ahora al caso en .con-

tirlos que intervengan en o
decretos de otros por medio de un in-
terdicto prohibitorio, claramente condu-
ciria a confusion, y seriamente podria em
barazar la administracion de justicia.™
(44 Jur. Fil,, 195).

Es el asunto de Hubahib contra In-
sular Drug. Co., 5 Lawyers Journal 281
(Feb. 27, 1937), en que el Juez de la
Primera Sala de Cebu expidio un inter-
dicto prohibitorio (preliminar contra el
sheriff provincia]-pa‘ra i!npedi:ila que cum-

l e e) I
expedido por el Juez de la Tercera Sala
der mismo juzgado, reiterando la doc-
trina sentada en Cabigas y otro contra
Del Rosirio, este Tribunal dijo: “Las
varias Salas de un Juzgado de Primera
Instancia -de una provincia o ciudad,
tenis
autoridad y siends como son de juris-
diccion ‘concurrente, y coordinada, no de-
ben, ni puede; ni les esta permitido, in-
miscuirse en sus respectivos asuntos, y
nienos en sus ordenes o sentencias, por
medio de interdictos_prohibitorios. (Ca-
b.gao y otro contra Del Rosario y otro,
1922, 44 Jur. Fil., 192, y las causas alli
citadas; Nufiez y Enrile contra Low,
1911, 19 Jur. Fil., 256; Orais contra
Escafio, 1909, 14 Jur. Fil. 215.)"

En el asunto de Mercado y otro contra
e! Juez Ocampo, 72 Phil. Rep. 318,
se frataba de una orden' dictada por el
Hon. Juez B. A., de 28 de enero de
1940, que desestimo las objeciones
de las comparecientes y mantuvo su or-
den del 16 de abril del mismo afio, que
oidenaba la comparecencia de E. L. de

.y J. F. de R. para declarar sobre
ciertos bienes del finado Mercado. L.;s
P: tes p i e
reconsideracion y nueva vista; el Juez
O., que habia vuelto o ocupar su sala
del juzgado despues de su vacacion, en
resolucion del 2 de julio de 1950, re-

considero las ordenes promulgadas por

el anterior Juez B. A, El segundo juez
no se entrometio en las ordenes del pri-
mero porque el segundo actuaba-en lu-
far primero en un_ mismo asunto.
Este Tribunal sento la doctrina de que
“X X X un juez que preside una sala de
un juzgado de primera instancia pueds
modificar o anular la orden que ha dic-
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o como tienen la misma o igual-

sideracion, .resulta que el Juez O., al
anular las ordenes del Juez B. A.; ac-
tuaba como Juez del mismo Juzgado de
Primera Instancia de Pampanga y apa-
1eciendo claro -que si las mociones de

ideracion se hubj 4

ante el Juez B. A. este podia anularlas,
si a su juicio_ asi procediese, es chvio
que el Juez O. podia hacer lo mismo y
podia anularlas, como asi lo hizo.

“x x x Declaramos que el Juez O.
tenia jurisdiccion para anular las or-
denes que dicto el Juez’'B. A. y que al
hacerlo no hizo mal uso de la discre-
cion que le ha conferido la ley x x x.”

La doctrina en esta ultima causa no
revoca la establecida en las dos anterio-
res causas citadas. En aquellas dos el
juez de una sala expidio en un asunto
una orden de interdicto anulando la or-
den de ejecucion dictada en otro por el
iuez de la otra, lo que es una verdadera
intromision indebida de un’ juez en el
asunto de otro juez. Peso en el asunto
de Mercado contra Ocampo no se trata
de dos causas de dos diferentes salas;
se trata de una orden de un juez pro-
veida en un asunto y que despues fue
revocada por otro juez que habia vuel-
to a-ocupar su cargo al terminar su'va-
cacion. Aunque eran dos jueces, aciuo,
sin embargo, el uno en lugar ‘del otro
tomo si_hubiera actuado un solo juez.

de Ia parte d el
el asunto.

El Buick Sedan con placa No. 1074
habia sido embargado por el Sheriff en
virtud de una orden de embargo preven-
tivo dictada en la causa civil No. 9126,.
y el automovil no esta exento de em-
bargo (Regla 39, .art. 12). No pedia,
por tanto, el Hon. Juez Montesa, por,
riedio de una orden interlocutoria, dis-,

‘poner la entrega a los demandantes

dicho automovil en.la causa civil No.
10624, anulando ipso facto la orden de
enibargo preventivo dictada e1 la causa’
civil No. 9126. Fue una indebida in-
‘remision de un juez en la orden de otro
juez de igual categoria. En realidad, la
orden dictada en la causa civil No.
10624 deshizo la que otro juez decreto’
en la causa No. 9126. El juez d= una
sala de un Juzgado no debe anular la
orden de otro juez de otra sala del mis-
mo juzgado porque ambos son jueces de
la misma categoria v actuan indepen-
diente pero’ coordinamente, a menos
que el segundo actue en lugar del primero.
sobre un mismo expediente.

La orden dictada - disolviendo la or-
den de -embargo preventivo era factil
bajo el Codigo de Procedimiento Civil:

gso.rque su articulo 263, parrafo 4, dice
ic

“Que los bicnes no han sido sceues-
trados para satisfacer contribucion al-
guna, ni multa por mandate de una ley,’
ni embargados en cumplimiento de una
dictada contra los bienés del

No se ha declarad: la

¥y en el caso de haber sldo-

p
base sobre que d la doctrina_en
las causas de Cabigao 'y otro contra Del
Rosario, y Hubahib contra Insular Drug
Co., pero et evidente que es el articulo

263, parrafo 4, del Codigo de Procedi-'

miento Civil :

El articulo 1.0 de la Regla 62 dis-
pone que, en un litigio para recobrar la
posesion bienes muebles, el deman-
dante podra solicitar una order interlo-
cutoria para que se le entreguen dichos
bienes; pero, - para que pueda obtener
lesa orden, es necesario que pruebe bajo
juramento: (a) que es duefio de los
ienes 'embargados a que tiene derecho
a la posesion de los mismos; (b) que los
bienes son injustamente detentados, ale-
gando la causa de la det ion; (c)

embargados, ‘que son bienes exentos de'
embargo.” :

Pero, bajo el reglamento vigente, ro se:
puede ordenar la entrega de los bienes
embargados proventivamente porque la.
Regla 62, articulo 2, parrafo (c), dis-
pone_lo siguiente: -

“Que no han sido secuestradosfpura’
satlstacer contribucion alguna, ni mulfd’
por mandato de Ja' ley, ni embargados
erf virtud de ejecucion o embargo pre-
‘ventivo contra los blenes del demandan-
te, o en caso de serlo asl, que son lienes
exentos de embargo.”

En la nueva disposicion se afiadieron
las palab “o embargo preveniivo”.

que no han sido secuestrados para satis-
Facer contribucion alguna, ni multa por
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Esta es la innovacion adoptada por el
nuevo reglamento, con el evidente pro-
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posito de jmpedir el triste espectaculo
de que un juez revoque la orden dictada
por otro .juez, en jerjuicio de la orde-

nada administracion justicia.

Ademas, los demandantes solamente
prestaron fianza de P6,500.00, que es el
alor_del mtomovnl embargado. .en. vez
del doble de su valor.

La orden impugnada esta en abierta
contravencion con las pouclones
articulo 2; Regla 62.

Se firma-la resol con
costas cotra Hao Yu Guan y Ruflno
Ibafiez.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Padn"a Mon-
temayor, Jugo, Bautista Angclo ‘and
Labrador, JJ., conformes.

vV

José L. Laxamana, pchloner. vs. Jose

7. Baltazar, respondent. G. R. L-5955,
Septemb 19“1,,952 B

TIVE OFFICERS.— The contempor-
aneous construction: placed upon the
statute by the executive officers
charged with its execution deserves
great weight in the courts.
Gerardo - S. Limlingan and Jose L.
Baltazar for petitioner.
WMacapagal, Punsdlan & Yabut and
Pedro S. David for respondent.
Pedro Lopez, ‘Ramon Duterte and
Regino -Hermosisima as amici curige.
DECISION
BENGZON, J.:
Wl\en m July 1952 the mayor of
Sexmoan, anga, was suspended,
the wwmaym r T. Baltazar, assum-
ed office as mayor by virtue of section’

2195 of the Revised Ad'nmmrahve
Code.

Phifippine Decisions

the same, shall. be. filed by appointment
by the provincial governor, with the con-.
sent of the provincial board. ’

(b) In case of a permanent vacancy,
In any m\lmelpml office, the same shall
be filed by. appointment by the provin-
cial board, except In case of a municlpal.
president, In which the permanent va--
cancy shall be filled by the municipal,
Vvice-president.” x x x

It will be seen that under this ‘sechon.
when the office’ of municipal presid ent
(now mayor) became permanently va-'
cant the vice-president stepped into the'
office. The section omitted reference to-
temporary vacancy of such office because,
section 2195 governed that contingency.
In thls regard sectlons 2180 and 2195
‘suppl other. Paragraph (3),

However, the pi
acting_under section 21(a) of the' Re—
vised Election Code (R. A. 180). wi

ithe consent of the provincial board ap-
uemted Jose L. Laxamana. as mayor of

I, PUBLIC OFFICERS- MAYORS-
VICE-MAYOR DISCHARGES DU-
TIES OF SUSPENDED MAYOR.—
When  in July 1952 the mayor of
Som. Pampanga, was, mpeuded.

d office as

who di the cor-
responding official oath.

Result: this quo warranto proceed-
ing, based solely on the peunoners pro-
position that the section first mentmnad

fices in

of section 2180 applied to municipal of-
eral, other than. that of !he
municipal prcslclent

Under the. Revised Admmlhauve

ially the two sections in-.

dioat m was no doubt in Gov-

ernment circles ‘that when the municipal’

president was suspended from office; the.
vice-president took his place.

has been repealed by the sub
ision of the Remed Election Code.

nnyor by virtue of section 2195 of
the Revised {Administrative Code.

H the:
ting under section 2I(a)

Revlsed ection Code (R. A: IGO)
with the consent of the provincial
board appointed L, as mayor of Sex-
moan, who immediately took the cor-
responding official oath. Held: When
the mayor of a municipality is sus-

pended, absent or temporanly unable.
hu duties should be disch J:
the vice-mayor in locordance wn
sec. 2195 of the Revised. A
trative Code.

2. STATUTORY CONSTRUCTION; IN.
TERPRETATION OF REENACT ED
STATUTE.—Where a statute has re-
ceived a contemporaneous and: prac-
tical interpretation and the statute
as mterpreted is reenacted, prac-
tical interpretation is ed great-
er weight than. it ordinarily receives,
and is regarded. as presumptively the
correct interpretation of ‘the law.

3. ID,., CONFLICT BETWEEN GEN.
ERAL AND SPECIAL STATUTES —
WI\ere one statute deals with a sub-
ject in general terms, and another
de a part of the same sub-
ject in a more detailed way, the two
should be harmonized if possible; but
if there is any conflict, the latter will
prevail, regardless of whether it was
"passed prior to the general statute.

4 1ID; CONSTRUCTION PLACED
UPON STATUTE BY- EXECU.
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" If there was such repeal, this petition
should be granted; ‘and Laxamana de-
clared the lawful mayor of Sexmoan.
Otherwise .it must be denied ().

The two statutory provisions read as
follows:

“Sec. 2195. TEMPORARY DISABIL-
ITY OF MAYOR.—Upon the occasion of
the absence, suspension. or other tem-
porary disability of the Mayor, his duties
shall be discharged by the Vice-Mayor,
or It there be no Vice-Mayor, by the
councllor who at the last general elec-
tion recelved the highest number of
votes.”

“Sec. 21(a) VACANCY IN ELECTIVE
PROVINCIAL, CITY OR MUNICIPAL
OFFICE.—Whenever a temporary vacan-

ey In any elective local office occurs, the,

-same shall be filled by appointment by
the President if it Is a provincial or city
office, and by the provincial governor,
With the consent of the provincial board,
If it 1s a municipal office. (R. A. 180; the
Revised Electlon Code.)

Section 21 (a)—the portion relating to
municipal offices — was taken. from sec-
tion 2180 of the Revised Administ:ative
Code, which partly provided:

“Sec. 2180. VACANCIES IN MUNICI-

PAL OFFICE.—(a) In case of a tempo-

rary vacancy in any office.

vacancy In office of mu-
niclpal president—Paragraph (a) of this
section (2180) should be construed to,
cover only municipal offices other than.
the office of president. Sectlon 2195 of
the Administrative Code should be ap-
plied in case of the absence, suspension, -
or other temporary disability of the mu-
nicipal president. (Op. Atty. Gen Sept. -
21, 1917; Ins. Aud., Oct: 23, 1927.5" (Ara-
neta, Administrative Code Vol IV p.°
2838).

cannot

acting president. — There {s no provision
of law or
the municipal president to desl;nn(e any
person to act in his stead. during his,

absence or From
the provision of section 2195 of this code.
it is clear that the vice-president or, i!
there be no vice-president, the counctlor
who at the last general election recelved
the highest number of votes, should au-
tomatlenlly (without any formal desig-
nation) discharge the dutles of the pres-
ident” (Op. Ins. Aud., March 2, 1926
(Araneta, Administrative Code Vol. IV
p. 2839).

N

Now, it is reasonablé to assure that
the incorporation of the above section
2180 into the Revised Election law as
sec. 21(a) did not have the effe:t of
enlarging its scope ), to s
repeal section 2195, what "fl the prep
sumption against implied repeals ).

(1) The alleged offer of appointment Ly the
governor which Baltazar rejected is im-
materfal, because under sec. 2195 no ap-
pointment is needed.

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

(2)'It was even restricted ‘to elective mu-
nicipal office.

® c n 3rd’
Ed. sec. 2014 note 1. .
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“Where a statute has !ecfiv.ed‘a contem-

and the statute as interpreted is re-enact-
the ‘practical mkerptetanon is accord-

ed greater weight th:

it ordinarily re-

ceives, and is rpgudzdl as presump:ively
the correct interpretafion of the law.

The rule here is based

upon the theory

:’I:at the legislature is acquainted with

e P of a
statute, especially ~when made by an
administrative body or executive officers

charged with the duty

or enforcing the law, and

of administering
ore. Ill'l-

pliedly adoph the interpretation upon

re-enactment.”

tion

“Where there . are : two., Statutes, the
earlier special: and.-the Jlater general—
the terms of the general broad erough
to include the matter provided for in
the speclal — the fact thet. one is spe-
clal and the other s general creates a
presumption that the special is.to be con--
sidered as remaining an exception to the
general, one as a_general law of the land,
the other as the Jaw of a particular case.
(State vs. Stoll, 17 Wall. (U.S.]), 425.)"

In fact even after the Revised Elec-
was enacted, the Department

of the Interior and the office of Execu-

tive S

y who are d with the

(Sutherland S v

Construction, sec. 5109.)

Indeed, even disregarding. their origin,
the allegedly conflicting sections, could
be interpreted in the light of the princi-
ple of statutory construction that when

supervision of provmcnl and municipal

held that

in case of the suspemwn or other tem-
porary disability of ‘the mayor, the vice-

mayor

shall, by operation of law, as-

mme the oﬁlce of the mayor,. and if

a general and a

are

inconsistent the latter is paumount to
the former (Sec., 288 Act 190). In
other- words, section 2195 referring par-
ticularly to vacancy in the office of ma-
yor, must prevail. over the general terms
ol sec, 21(a) as to vacancies of munici-

pal {(local) offices. Otherwise stated,

section 2195 ma;

be deemed an
tion to or qualification of the latter ¢

c?

“Where one statute deals with a sub-
ject in general terms, and another deals
with a part of the same subject in a

more detailed way, the

two should be

harmonized if possible; bu if there is any

conflict, the latter will
léss of whether it was
the general statute.”

(Sutherlan,

prevail, regard-
passed prior to
Statu-

ory Construction,” (Sutherland Stasutory

Construction, sec. 5204

In a recent decision ), we had oc-
casion to pass on a similar situation, -re-

peal by subsequent general provision of

a prior special provision- and we saud,:

“It ls well settled that a specfal and
local statute, providing for # particular
case or class of cases, is not repealed
by a subsequent statute, general in its
terms, provisions and application, unless
the Intent to repeal or alter is manifest,
although the terms of the general act are
broad enough to include the cases em-
braced {n the speclal law, x x X It is a
canon of statutory construction that a
later statute, gemeral in its terms and
not expressly repealing a prior special
statute, will ordinarily not affect the
special provislons of such earlier statute.
(Steamhoat Company vs. Collector. 18
Wall. [U.S.], 478; Cass County vs. Gl-
lett, 100 U.S. 585;. Minnesota,vs, Hitch-
cock, 185 U.S. 373, $96.)

(4) Sutherland, Statutory Construction 3rd
}d. Vol. 1 p. 486.

(5) Philippine Rallway Co. v. Collector of
Int. Rev. G.R. No. L-3869, Merch, 1952.
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ofﬁce sha]l
councilor.”

ble, said
arged ' by- the first
(Annex 5, g the answer).

Needless to say, the contemporaneous

construction placed upon the statute by
the executive officers charged with its
execution deserves ‘great weight in the
courts ©,

Consequently it is our ‘ruling that when

the mayor of a municipality is suspended,
absent or temporarily unable. his duhes

should bé discharged by the

vice-I.a; 0]‘

m accordance with sec. 2195 of the
vised Administrative Code,

This quo warranto petition is dismiss-

ed with costs. So ordered.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Padilla. Monte-

mayor, Jugo, Bautista Angelo and La-
brador, /], concurred.

Mr. Justice Tuason took no part.

Vi

'

2, 1D,:- ID,. EMPLOYERS NOT AL.

LOWED TO . STAKE MINING
CLAIMS FOR THEM —It has been
e practice of .miners to employ

others to stake mining clauns for
‘them.. This is usually -done afte: ‘the
prospectors have assured themselves
that_a :mine exists in a certain jocal-
ity. The man.-who places the satake
could easily leave fractional mineral
claims in between the claims without
réporting: the existence of fac-
tions to his principal. Later he could
.stake and: c'l’um them. If this is per-
mitted to happen, bona fide miners
can easily be held up by the very
men whom they have .employed to
Mtake their mining claims. If the min-
ing industry shall be' protected and
the exploitation of the natural re-
sources is country encouraged,
such practice should not be tolerated,
The wrong or the damage that can
be done is unlimited. If agents or
yees or. laborers are

to conceal or without éertain mining
‘claims- ordeed staked by -their em-
ployer who gave them specific  ins-
tructions ‘to stake the entire ground
in a ceitain-- Ioculnty. the effect wlg
an

legallzatwn of a l\oldup
go\ TRAC T GLARD[AVSH]PQ

D
PERSDN UNDER GU:\RDIANSH]P
—=Even in the execuiion of contracts,
in the-absence 'of a -statute tothe
contrary, the presumption ‘of insanity
and mental incapacity is only prima
facie and may be rebutted by evid-
erice; -and -a ‘person under guardian-
ship for insamity may siill enter into
a valid contract and -even -coavey
property, provided it is proven ‘that
at the time of entering into said -con-
tract,-he wa's not to interfere with or
affect his capacity to appreciate the
and significance of the

Paulino D plaintiff-app
vs. A. J. Reynolas, E. ]. Harmon and
Big Wedge Mining Co., G. R. L-3572,
September 30, 1952, Montemayor, J.
1. MINING EMPLOYERS AND EM.
PLOYEES, LOCATION OF MINING:
CLAIMS —It would really be unfair,
even against public policy to allow
a person employed to stake ard lo-
cate mining claims for his employer
to make locations on his own ac-
count and for his own benefit tho
done outside hours of work or em-
ployment, because there is an. obvious

-

incompilibility and conflict of in-.

terests between those of the employer
on one hand and those of the em-
ployer on the other, unless there is a
clear and express agreement to the
contrary.

(6) Madrigal v. Rafferty, 38 Phil. 4!4. Gov-
ernment v. Blnalonan, 32 Phil.
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" EMPLOVEES.
“BE COMPELLED TO TRANSFER

transaction entered into by him.

INSANITY: PERSONS MENTALLY
DERANGED REGARDING CERTAIN
SUBJECTS MENTALLY :SOUND: IN
OTHER RESPECTS ~There are ma-
ny cases of persons mentally derang-
ed who alhough they have been

.having .obsessicns ,and delusions for
.many years regarding certain subjects

and situations, still are mentally
sound in other respects. There are
others who though i insane; have their
lucid ‘intervals when in all respects
they are perfectly same and mentally
sound.

ID . MINING, EMPLOYERS AND

EMPLOYEL COULD

‘MINING CLAIMS TO EMPLOYER —
Although at the time of executing
the deed of sale of mining. claims,
the vendor was still lqenta?ly inca-

December 31, 1962



acitated, -because of his moral and
- Jegal obligation to transfer the min-
ing claims.to his employers, he could
through his guardian have been com-
pelled by the court to execute said

National Psychopathic Hospital), Man-
aluyong, Rizal, said to- be suffering
f:om “paranecia”. On October 15, 1929,
Dr. Toribio Joson, assistant alienist of
said Hos'pital. submitted the following

transfer, or ‘after the of

his guardianship obliged p Il
to execute said transfer to his em-
ployers. He acted as a trustee for
his employers and the law will not
allow him to invoke insanity or men-
tal incapacity to violate his trust.

6 'CONTRACTS: VALIDITY OF ONE.
PESO CONSIDERATION.- Where in
the two deeds of sale of mining claims
each mentions P1.00 and other va-
luable consideration, the me:ﬂt
whereof was acknowledged, 1o be the

iderati the sideration is

sufficient, according to the provision
of law, (Art. 1277 of the Civil
Code). Besides, consideration in the
contract will be presumed and it is
licit, unless the debtor proves the
contrary.
MINING: EMPLOYERS AND EM.
PLOYERS: CONSIDFRATION- FOR
CONVEYANCE OF MINING CLAIMS
NOT NECESSARY—The mining
claims having been located for the
bene the employer by an em-
ployee in his capacity as such, paid
for t purpose, no conbideration
for the conveyances of the mining
claims. by the :employee to the em-
ployee was necessary. The employee
was merely fulfilling an obligation
and complying with a trust.

Tafiada, Pelaez & Techankee for ap-
pellant. ’

Claro M. Recto for appellee.

DECISION
'MONTEMAYOR, J.t

For purposes of this decision, the fol-
lowing facts may be said to be agreed
upon by the parties or to be without dis-
‘pute. Because the plaintiff-Paulino M.
‘Dumaguin would appear to be the cen-
‘tral figure in this case, we shall begin by
making reference to this background and
-his status at the time he entered into the
transactions and executed the deeds of
conveyance whose legality is now the sub-
‘ject of the present petition.

~

Paulino M. Dumaguin was a teacher
in the public elementary schools for a
year and a half, and from 1916 to 1918
was the Manager of the Head Waters
Mining Company in Baguio. As Mana-
ger of said mining company Paulino ac-
quired some knowledge of mining. On r
before May 21, 1929, he was a super-
vising line-man of the Bureau of Posts.
On fhat date (Mav 21, 1929) he was
admitted to the Insular Psychopathic
Hospital at San Felipe Neri (now the

“ December 31, 1952

MEMORANDUM

TO: The Alienist in Charge Insular Psy-
chopathic Hospital, San Felipe Neri,
Rizal.

SUBJECT: Paullno M. Dumaguin—
Male, married, 33 years old, Ex-Su-
pervising Lineman of the Bureau of
Posts, admitted to the hospital at
11:25 a.m. on May 21, 1929.

1. The patlent is well behaved, orfent-
ed in all sphere, coherent in his speech
and has no more illusion or hallucina-
tions; but is having a delusion that one
of the patients in the hospital is trylng
to chloroform him. He consequently keeps
away from the said patient.

2. He is also not sure that his for-
mer whom he be-
lleved chloroformed him before, would
not chloroform him anymore when he
goes home.

8. This type of insanity which Pau-
lino M. Dumaguin is suffering from is
therefore that of Paranecia, which runs
a very chronic course of usually a life
time, but which may show improvement
as the patient grows older”. (See Ex-
hibits 42, folio 195; Italic ours)

After Paulino’s discharge from the hos-
pital on or about November 11, 1929,
iI:‘order to enable his wfvifa to withdraw

is retirement gratuity from the govern-

ment, on September 16, 1930, she filed
guardianship proceedings in the Court
of First Instance of Camarines Sur. Said
court relying presumably on the report
of Dr. Joson above quoted granted the
petition and appointed her _as Paulino’s
guardian.

On February 2, 1931, Paulino and
his guardian in a ioint motion bef

fore_the
Court of Camarines Sur among others
alleged that —

“4. Que en la actualidad, el citado
Paulino M. Dumaguin, ya esta re-estable-
cido, por lo que se le ha permitido dejar
el Hospital y ahora vive con su familia
en esta localidad, que es su residencla.

‘6. Que el mencionado Paulino M.
Dumaguin ha reclbido un cheque del
Goblerno por la cantidad de P412.38, co-
mo parte de su pension.

“6. Que los compareclentes neresitan
el importe el importe de dicho cheque
para atender a sus subsistencla, pucs se
hallan en la actualidad faltos de todo
necesario.”

a.d asked that they be authorized to
cash said check and use its proceeds for
their support:

“POR TANTO, suplican al Juzgado
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que se les poner de su producto para
su manutencion.”

In 1934, the guardianship proceedings
were closed.

In and before the year 1930, defend-
ants A. 1. Reynolds and E. J. Hami-
son sold and transferred to the same de-
mineral claims in the Itogon District, sub-

ince of Benguet, M in Province,
krown as the ~“ANACONDA _GROUP”.
They employed Fructuoso ~Dumaguin,
brother of plaintiff Paulino, in their work
as prospectors.

At the beginning of 1931, Fructuoso
Dumaguin was thus working for said
defendants Reynolds and Harrison re-
locating some of their mining claims pre-
viously located and locating new ones,
for which work he was paid P5.00 a
day. About the same time his brother
Paulino M. Dumaguin, plaintiff herein,
leaving his home in Camarines Sur went
up to %aguio in search of work. To help
Lim, Fructuoso got him employed by the
defendants and the two brothers work-
ed ther in the mining business for the
defendants.

The theory of the plaintiff is that he
was employed only to re-locate defend-
ants’ mining claims in the ANACONDA
GROUP  while the defense claims that
like his brother Fructuoso, Paulino was
employed not only to re-locate mining
claims within the Anaconda Group but
also to stake and locate new mining
claims for them. For said work Paulino
was also paid by the day by defend-
ants,

During the months of May, June and
l]._uly of that year 1931 the two brothers

ructuoso and Paulino staked and locat-
ed ten mining claims or fractions there-
of named Victoria, Greta, Triangle, Lo-
lita, Frank, Paul, Leo, Loreto, Arthur
and G. Ubalde, all said claims or frac-
tions being later regi in the name
of Paulino M. Dumaguin as locator in
the office of the Mining Recorder. By vir-
tue of an instrument (Exh. “A”) entitled .
“Deed Transfer” dated September
10, 1931, Paulino M. Dumaguin con-
veyed and transferred to defendants A.
I. Reynolds and E. J. Harrison nine of
the ten mineral claims just mentioned,
and in another instrument (Exh. “B”
on the same date September 10, 1931,
Paulino transferred and conveyed to de-
fendant Reynolds the remaining claim
Victoria.

Later, Reynolds as vendee of the min-
irg claim Victoria by virtue of a deed of

.sale (Exh. “C”) dated November 2,

1931 sold and transferred said claim to
the defendant Big We Mining Co.
In another deed of sale ( “D") dat-
ed June 2, 1933, Reynolds and Harri-
son sold and transferred to the same de-
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fendant Big Wedge Mining Co. the
claims Frank, Paul, Leo, Loreto and
Asthur, In still another deed of sale
(Exh. “J”), Reynolds and Harrison sold
and transferred to the same Big Wedge
Mining Co. the Greta, Lolita and Trian-
gle fractions or mineral claims. As a
result, all the ten mineral claims or frac-
tions transferred by Paulino to Reynolds
ard Harrison, with the exceptioa of the
craim G. Ide were in turn sold and
transferred to the Big Wedge Mining
Co. ' What was done with this last claim
o: fraction G. Ubalde, does not appear
on the record, but it must still remain in
the name of Reynolds and Harrison.

Plaintiff Dumaguin initiated this case
in the Court of Firsy Instance of Baguio
by filing his original complaint on Nov-
ember 5, 1934, f:tler amending it on July
26, 1939 apd finally re-amending it on

that said.mineral claims 5o Jocated would
eventually be transfarred to them. In its
turn defendant Big Wedge Mining Co.
followed the theory of Keynolds and
Harrison about Paulino having been
employed by them and having made the
lucation of the mineral claims in ques-
tion for their employers, said that the
company was not aware of the alleged
mental capacity of plaintiff at the time
that he executed the deeds of transfer in
favor of Reynolds and Harrison, and
that even if plantiff was under guardian-
ship at the time, vet he confirmed and
ratified the deeds of transfer by his acts
and letters after his release from guar-
dianship, and that said company bought
the said mineral claims in good faith and
for valuable consideration from the re-
gistered owners,

Hea{i‘l;lg was Ilmel‘.d- on July 3I., 1940.

June 4. 1940. Under. his
complaint which contains three causes of
action, he a)leges that when he executed
the deeds of transfer (Exhs. A and B)
.he was under guardianship and did not
possess the mental capacity to contract
and so asked the court that the said two
deeds.be declared null and void. He also
alleged that those two deeds being void,
Reynolds and Harrison had no title to
transmit to the Big Wedge Mining Co.
by virtue of the deeds of sale, Exhs. “C”
and “D” é];{:intiff evidently ov<rlooked
the deed, “J*"), and d ore those
two deeds of sale (Exhs. € and
should also be declared null and void,
and that he (Paulino) should be de-
clared the owner of the ten mining claims
or fractions in question. Finally, he claim-
ed that the Big Wedge Mining Co, had
illegally taken possession of the ten min-
iog claims and profitably. worked or
operated them and so he asked that said
company be ordered to render an account-
ing of its operations and, the profits made
trerefrom, and that the defendants should
bg ordered jointly and severally to. pay
to the plaintiff such profits as may have
been derived by the Big Wedge K/lining
Co. as shown by, its accounts.

Defendants Reynolds and Harrison
filed their- original answers on January
30, 1935 and April 12, 1935, respec-
tively, both superseded by their amend-
ed answers on- January 22, 1936, De-
fendant Big Wedge Mining Co. filed'its
answer on jamm;y 30, 1935, which was
amended on January 18, 1936 and la-
ter re-amended on February 5, 194Q.
Reynolds and Harrison claimed in their
answers_that plaintiff Paulino and his
brother Fructuoso had been expre.cly em-
ployed by them to locate and' stake. mi-
neral claims, and that said two kiathers
staked and located: the ten minera! claims
in question for lh:mj(dafenjt_iamﬁ). and

‘the briefs are now

e y was mainly

cumentary. Only three witnesses took
the witness stand. Atty. Alberto Jamir
was presented bv the Big Wedye Min-
ing Co. to identify a copy of a decision
rendered by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Defendant Reynolds  testi-
fied for the defense. For the plaintiff,
orly Fructuoso Dumaguin testified for
his brother. Why Paulino, the nlantiff,
did not take the witness stand, if not :o
support the allepations of his complaint,
al least to refute the evidence for the
defense particularlv that which tended to
show that he was emolayed by defend-
ants Reynolds and Harrison to stake and
Iccate mineral claims. for ¢l with the
widerstanding that he would later trans-
fer said claims to his employers, is not
known to this Court. After trial, Judge
Jose R, Carlos before whom the hearing

wy 16, 1941, di

Neither Reymolds nor Harrison has ap-
peared, before the. Court of Appeals or
before. this Court. Appellant’s attorney
represented that Harrison's counsel could
Dot appear in the aoneal due to lack of
authority net havipe  heard fiom his
client since Libération and being of the
belief that his clieny is dead. There was
aiso infarmation to the effect that defen-
dant Reynolds had been killed .during
the early part of the occupation. by the
Japanese, Sa, only the Bingedg_e Min-
iag_Ca. is opposing the present appeal.

The decisive and pivetal question here
is whether plainiiff Paulino M. Duma-
guin and his brother Fructuoso acting on
their account staked and located these
mining claims or fractions in dispute for
Paulino, or whether they acting as em-
ployees and agents of defendants. Rey-
nolds and Harrison, staked and located
said claims for' and in behalf of their
employers. We agree with the trial court
that the great preponderance of evidence
is to the effect that these claims. were lo-
cated for Reynolds, and Harrison by
Pauline and Fructuosa as employees, and
that. the latter were pur) employed
and: paid fer his. wark. All the expenses
incident to the staking and location of
said claims and the registration. of the
ccrresponding _declarations  of location
were paid by Reynolds. and: Ha risen. It
is. true that in ome part of his testimony,
Fructuoso claimed that he and his bro-
ther were. employed: marely te- re-locate
the minine claims ts. within
the Anaconda Group but later on, he
admitted in_his testimony. and also in his
affidavit (Exh. 1) which was prepar-
ed before these proceedings were initiat-
ed in court that he and his brother Pau-
lino working together were paid by the
defend Reynolds, and Harrison to lo-

was held, rendered judgti-::m on 'Jgnua-

Paulino Dumaguin appealed from
that decision. His Record on Appeal
was. approved on Aoril 16, 1941 Appel-
lant’s brief was filed on November 3,
1941 and the brief for the Big Wedge

ining Co. was filed or rather is dated
December 31, 1941. It is not known
whether defendants Reynolds and Har-
rison ever filed a brief. The fact is that
the record' of the case was lost or des-
troyed during the war and onlv copies
‘of the record on appeal and the brief
were salvaged. As to the oral and do-
cumentary evidence which was lost, only
those portions' of the transcript and do-
cuments reproduced and appeaéing 'in

abl ut he

cate new mining claims outside the Ana-
conda Group; that as a matter of fact,
Paulino engaged in: this work at the be-
gioning, but because he (Fructuaso)
fcund that Pauline physically ‘was nat
equal to the arduous work of e!iimbing up
and down mountains te stake and locate
claims, he was placed in charge of the
payroll ‘of the defendants and detailed
to do paper work which, it is presumed,
included the registration of the decl

ticns, of location of the mining claims in
the office of the Mining Recorder, in his
name. Fructuoso also admitted that there
was an understanding before and nending
the staking and lccation of said mining
claimz that they would eventually be

rarties have agreed' to the correctness of
these portions so quoted in the briefs.

After the reconstitution of the case,
the Court of Appeals which kad taken
charge'gf the “appeal found that the

that there. was an. ’
‘the two brothers and the two defndants

€0

amount lved was beyond its juris-
diction. and so. certified the case to us.
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 to. their real owner, Reynolds
and Harrison.

In consonance with this correct theory
that these mining claims, were located for
defend Reynolds and Harison, as
counsel for appellee well observes, Exhi-
Lits A and B are both entitled “Deed of
Transfer”. This conyeys the idea that
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Pauliric” was 'merely transferring to "theé:
real “owners property which technically :
and in name were registered ‘as his own.
Cthierwise, if he really owned these min--
ing_claims, the two - deedc (Exhibits ‘A .
and B) would have been mors appro-i
priately entitled “Deed of Sale” and the :
body of ‘said instrumerits should have sta-
ted that he was sellin+ the mining claims.
On ‘the other hand, we have d:e instru-
merits (Exhibits C and D) wherein R'ev-
nolds and - Harrison sold said mining -

claims or fractions to the Big Wedge
Mining Co. and the documents were each -
entitled “Deed of Sale”.

It would really be unfair, even agnnst
public policy to-allow a person émployed .
to stake and locate mining claims for his
employer to make locations on: his own "
eccount and for his own benefit though .
done; outside hours of work or cmploy-
ment; because there is an obvious incom- -

patibility. and conflict of interests between"
those of the employer. on the one hand
and. those of the employee on the other,

unless there is a clear and ess agree-
mem to tlle contrary. Judge los l:l {ns
states

the fiduciary relahon between Paulino -
and his employers Reynolds ‘and Harri-
scn anid the sound and correct sule and
public policy on’this matter. N
“The fduciary 'relation between the
plaintiff and the defendants A. L Rey-
nolds and-E. J. Harrison is very clear
from the evidenée. Fructuoso M.. Duma-
guin has clearly stated that his brother,
Paulino’ M. Dumaguin, was working un-
der him while he was locating the claims
in question for A. L Reynolds and E. J.
Harrison: There can be no doubt that
these clelms in questlon weré among
those which these defendants wanted
staked because, according to Fructuoso
M. Dumanguin himselt, they all adjoin the’
Anaconda Group, which ground he ‘was
* specifically instructed .to- stake for the
sald defendants. The plaintiff herein,
therefore, learned of the existence, espe-
cially . of .the fractional mineral. claims,.
because he was with the party who stak-
ed the rest of the claims in that locals
lty ‘To permit the plaintiff herein to ds-
sert his' claim of - ownership over these'
clatms In° question wouid be tantamount
to allowing him'to violate and infringe
all the sound ahd' age-old rules’ which
govern principal and agent. There can’
< Ye no doubt that-this relation ‘existed
because Fructuoso M. Dumaguin, the
sole witness for the plaintiff, stated ca-
tegorically in his affidavit Exhibit g
that all the clalms subject of this litiga-
tion, except the C. Ubaide mineral claim,
had been located and staked by him for
AL Reynolds and E. J. Harrison, though
the same ‘were recorded in the name. of
his ‘brother Paulino. It is ﬂulte evldent,
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-. made.ion- Exhibits ;"A’

‘transters were
and “B” did- not .
exipt, ; thepe  two;. defendants would satill
be| entitled to- an-asslgnment of the sald
claima. The evidence of the fiduciary re- ;
lation:between the plaintiff and. .the de- -
fendants A. I Reynolds-and E..J. Har-.
rison was given by noné other than Fruc-,
tuoso M. Dumaguin, the brother the only
‘witness of the plaintiff in this. case..

“Any act of an agent, the object or
tendency of which is to. commit a fraud
or,breach of the agency, should be dis-
ocouraged. In the first place, such acts
are condemned. by public policy. They
are against the morals; therefore, they .
should never be tolerated. An agent or
trustee, or anybody.who acts in a fldu-
clary capgeity, should never be permit-
ted to capitalize on his fiduclary posi-
tlon to mulet. or take of his

*" that likewise® belongs ‘to- the -principal,
not -only -because-. the . principal - has :to
assime the responsibility. of: the transac-

- tlon,” but: also ‘because the agent: cannot
be. permitted to derive advantage from
his own. default. '

It s only by rigid adherence to this

- rule that all temptation: can be-removed

from one. acting in a fiduciary capacity,

to abuse- his- trust or seek- his .own ad-

vantage: in the position which It atfords
him.’ ™

In view-of our conclusion and holdin
that these mining: claims were:staked ans
located for the benefit of defendants
Reynolds and Harrison, the other points
and questions involved in the appeal-ex-
haustively, in detail and with a;wealth of
authorities, discussed by counsel for bot
llant an llee with ability. and

principal or employer.

“It hag been the prictice of mine:s
to employ others to stake mining clafms
for them. This is usually done after the
prospectors have assured themselves that
a mine exists in a certain locality. The
man who places the stake could “easlly -
leave fractional mineral’ claims in ba2t- "
ween the clalms without reporting the’
existence of these fractions to lds prin-
cipal. Later he cbuld stake and claim
them. It this is permitted to hapoen, bon :
fide miners can easily be held up by the
very men whom they have employéd to
stake thelr mining clilms. It the mining
Industry shall ‘be nroteeted and the ex-’
plol!guon of the natural respurces of this-
country encouraged, such practice should
not be' tolerated. The wrong or the da-
mage that can be done is unlimited. It
agents or employees or laborers are per-
mitted to conceal or withhold certain mi-:
ning claims ordered staked by thelr em-
ployer Who gave them specific Instruc-
tions to stake the-entire ground In a-cor--
tain locality, the effect will practically be
the condonation and legalizaticn of a
holdup. For the reason, Mechem 'on
Agency, Sec. 1224, sald the following:

‘The well-settled -and’ salutary prin-

.if-any

E and
hil become qugntal and mot. of mm:ll

may.. discuss one or two - of ‘them .not w
much to strengthen our decision but ra-
ther to render more clear our views.
Appellant contends that the deeds of
nansfer (Exhs. A and B) should:be an-
nulled for lack ‘of mental capacity * be-
cuuse at the time of their executionhe
was undwundumhl for insanity. -
that althe in"a case of exe-
cution of a will by a testator who was
under f- uardianshio for mental derange-
ment, the presumption of insanity is only
juris tantum, subiect to- rebuttal. never-
thelm. mental incapacity as regards con-
tracts particularly those transferring pro-
perty, under similar circumgtances, in-
volves a conclusive pruumptwn which
cannot be rebutted by eviden oe. We have -
tudied the arguments and authorities
e

| by ‘both co(uuef on thie’” point,
are inclined vo agree with ¢ounsel’
for aﬁpellee ‘that’ thé better ruleis
even in

 that'
the execution of contracts, in the’

'absence of a statute to-the contrary, the

ptesumpnon of insanity and mental inca-

pacity is only prima facie:and may be’
Tebuitted by évidence; and that a person’
under guardianship for- insanity may still’
enw into.a valid contract and even con-
d it is proven that

ciple that person who to act
for' ‘another shall not, be in the same:
_matter, act for himself, result also in
the other rule, that-all profits made and'
advantage galned by the agent in. the
execution of the agency belong to the.
principal. And 1f matters not whothor
such profit or advantage be the:
result of the performance or of the
violation .of the duty of the agent
it it be the ffult of the agency.
It his duty be nrletly pertormed, the
runmn; nroru nmuu to the principal’
the legitimate comequencg of the re-
-hlt(on,, if profit agcrues trom s viola-
tian of duty while executing the agency,
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at the time of entering into contract,
he was not insane or that his mental de:.
fect if mentallv deranged did . not inter--
fere with or affect his capacity to appre-.
ciate, the meaning and significance of the:
transaction entered into by him. N

“Sec. 66. Geherally.—Of coirse, not'
every substandard ‘mentality or even
every mental Infirmity has the effect of
rendering 'the afflicted: person disabled
for ‘the purpose 9( entering into eon-
tru:t and makln‘ conveyuneea. x x x A
reasonable test, ‘suggested” by * séveral
courts for’ the purpose of determining
whether an Infirmity opu-ntea to render

651
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a person incapable of' binding himself
absolutely- by contract, 1s -whether. his
mind has been so affected as: to render
him incapable of understanding ‘the: na-
ture’ and - consequences ‘of his acts, or,
more exactly, whether his mental powers
have become so far affected as to make
him unable to understand the character
of the transaction in question. x x-x Some
authorities take the view that a guarantor
may be competent to execute a deed not-
withstanding his dfsability to transact
business generally, provided he under-
stands the nature of what he is doing
and recollects the property.of which he is
doing -and <the - . of

lino -was- dischatged from: the- Liospital
presumably because-his conditiomhad: im-
mved.- and ‘on February'2, 1931, Pau-
ino and his wife in a‘motien : -the
Court of -Camarines -Sur that Paulino
was already re-established (ya esta re-
establicido).  Several -months later he
went to Baguio looking for work. It is
16 be presumed that he was then no lon-
ger insane. It is mi;lally to be presumed
that his brothdr Fructuoso would not
kave ded him for lo; t

- and :at. the time that he executed

all this; we may ‘well- and-logically- pres:
sume-that all the time that Paulino.was«
employed by -Reynolds-and Harrison:to-
locate.and register mining claims for thesr, >
e 1
bits A and B and for several years there-

after when he continued in their-employ, -
neither Fructuoso,. Paulino’s brother -nor+
defendants. Reynolds and Harrison had

any reason to suspect, much less, to be-:
lieve th:t' Paulino was ?tllet than a sane,

an I

by defendants Reynolds and Harrison
and actually let him work for them, at
the beginning . climbing up and down

‘which -he is making a and to

1 to stake and locate claims for
kis employ

‘whom he is conveying it. Other author-:
itles, however, teke. the position that. to:
sustain' a deed, the grantor must have.
the ability ‘to transact ordinary ! usiness.
-In any-event, if it appears that the gran-
tor in-a .deed was.incapable of -compre-
hending- that the effect of' the instru-i-
ment, when :made, executed, and.deli- -
vered, would be to.divest him of title to
the land covered by the Instrument; it is
not binding.upon him. X x x.”: (28 -Am.
.Jur. Insane, etc,. Sec..66, pp. 70:-702.)
‘“x x x Even- partial insanity will-not
render a contract.voidable unless it-exists
in connection with .or is referabie: to the
subject matter of the contract. Similar-
ly, e delysion if unconnected with the,
transaction in -question, is not sufficlent
to, affect the. valldity of a contract con-
summated by the person thus affected.
Monomania or a mental fixation: or..ab-
a matter ect-.
ed with the act of conveylng.property
, will. not affect the validity of the con-
. veyance. X x X’ -(Ibid.,.p.. 703).

. There are many cases of persons men-
tally, deranged who although they have
been "having obsessions and delusions for.
.many years regarding certain subjects,
.and_ sityations, still are mentally sound
in other réspects. There are others who.
though insane, have _their lucid intervals
when in all respects they are perfectly
same. and _mentally sound. '

 In the‘case of Paulino M. Dumaguiin;

according to the ‘who -observed
‘and examined him, and who made his
report on October 15, 1929, and that
was more than two years before Exhibits
A and ‘B ‘were- executed, he (Paulino)
while ‘in the hospital -was “‘well behaved,
criented in -all spheres, coherént in his
speech and has no more illusion or hallu-
cinations; but is having a delusion th

: and if Paulino was then
irsane, it was not likely that Reynolds
aud Harrison would employ him to
do the work of staking and locating
claims to say nothing of taking charge
of the payroll of their emoloyer, and re-
istering with the Mining Recorder the
arations of location of mining claims.
There is every reason to believe as we do
and hold that at least from about the
beginning of the year 1931 when Pau-
Imo began working for his employers Rey-
nolds and Harrison, and when he exe-
cuted Exhs. A and B, he had the men-
tal capacity to.transact ordinary busi-
ness and was mentally capable of validly
entering into contract even conveyinz
pioperty to another. But even assuming
that at the time of executing Exhibits A
and B. Paulino were still mentally in-
capacitated, still, because of his moral
and legal obligation to transfer said
ciaims to his employers, he could through
bis guardian have been compelled by the
court to execute said transfer, or after
the termination of his dianship oblis-
ed personally to execute said transfer to
his employers. He acted as a trustee for
his employers and the law will not allow

him to invoke insanity or mental incapa- .

city to violate his trust. .

In relation with this alleged incapacity
of Paulino, it is interesting to note that
when he and his lawyers filed his first
complaint in 1934, that is, about three
years after executing s. A and B,
they said nothing about being mentally
i: capacitated in 1931. They did not
ask for the annulment of the deeds of
transfer (Exhibits A and B) on_the
ground of lack of mental capacity. They
assumed and took it for granted and led
aihers to believe that said deeds of trans-
fer were valid. They only asked for the

of d It was not until

at
. one of the patients in the hospital is try-
! iug to chlorof him. He ‘co tly
keeps away from said patient;” and that
he was “not sure that his former office-
mates whom he erroneously  believed
_chloroformed. him before would aot chlo-
roform him anymore when he goes home.”
This was in 1929, The same year Pau-
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five years later in the year 1939 when
they filed the first amended complaint
that they raised his question of mental
incapacity. It took him and his lawyers
almost five years to discover and claim
that he (Paulino) was not mentally ca-
pable to enter into a contract when he
executed exhibits A and B. In view of
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‘establish.

‘located for the

p indi- .
vidual, able to take care not only. of him-.
self and his interest but also of .the .in-
terests of his employers. Neither did the
other employees of Reynolds and Harri-
san to whom Paulino, paid wages on pay-
days; he being in charge: of the payroll, -
and the Mining Recorder-before - whom
h; 'exgclgted f;:;roper and vaflid.-rafﬁdavils.
c -for “of i

note any mental incapacity on the part.
of Paulino. All this goes to reinforce the -
finding - that ‘Paulino was mentally sane:
and capable in 1931.

Counsel for appellant next contends
that Exhibits “A” and .“B” ‘should be
declared void for lack of consicieration
Said two deeds each mentions #1.00 and
other -valuable consideration, the receipt
wherecf was acknowledged, to be the
consideration. We believe that that con-
sideration is sufficient, this aside from the-
provision of law (Auticle 1277) of - the
vil Code), that consideration in a con-
tract will be presumed and . that -it. is
licit, unless the debtor prove the contra-
ry which Paulino in this case failed to
Furthermore, according to
Reynolds, in consideration -of -the trans- .
fer of these mining claims,: he had later
aid Paulino between $3,000.00. -and
5.090.00 This was not refuted by
Paulino. Moreover. under the -visw we
take of the ‘mining claims having. been
benefit of - defendants
Reynolds and Harrison, by Paulino-in
his capacity as their employee,-paid- for
that purpose, no consideration- for. the
conveyances was even necessary. He was
reerely fulfilling an obligation “and: com-

‘plying with a trust.

In conclusion we find and hold that
Exhibits “A™ and “B” were valid. con-
veyances executed bv one who was men-
tally capable. Consequently, Reynalds
and Harrison had .a.valid title to con-

,vey as they did convey to defendant Big

“D”, and * J]

. In view of the foregoing, finding no
reversible error in the decision appealed
from the same is hereby affirmed, with

Wedge Mining. Co.. in Exhibits “C™,

costs,

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Padilla, Jugo,
Bautista Angelo, and Labrador, [].,
concurred; ’
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Messrs. Justices Feria, Tuason, Reyes
end :Pablo did not take part. :

vi

People of the Philippines, plaintiff-
appellee, vs. Nestorio nye, de-
fendant-appellant, G.R. L-3512, Sept-
ember 26, 1952, Padilla, ].

1. MURDER; KIDNAPPING; INTEN-
‘TION TO KIDNAP THE VICTIM;
PRESENCE OF OQALIFYING CIR-
CUMSTANCE— While accompa-
hied by two others was on the way
to her home in the barrio of Guina-
rona, municipality of Dagami, prov-
ince of Leyte coming her farm,
she' met a group of more than ten
men all armed with rifles, some of

thiem with beard reaching the breast.
R, one of the bearded men, ap-
proached, took hold of and r.iaﬁ‘ged
toward the sitio of Sawahon.
Hardly had the companions of T
walked one kilometer when they
heard gun reports. The following
day T was found dead in Sawahon
with two gunshot Wounds, the points
of entry being at the back and of
exit at the left breast and shoulder.
R was charged with the complex
crime of kidnapping with murder.
Held: There is no sufficient evidence
of intention to kidnap because from
the moment T was held and dragged
to the time when the gun repcits were
heard nothing was done or said by
R or his confederates to show or in-
dicate that the captors intended to
deprive her of her liberty for some-
time and for some purpose and there-
after set her free or kill her. The
interval was short as to negative the
idea implied in kidnapping. Her
short detention and illtreatment are
included or form part of the perpe-
tration of the crime of murder. It
is murder because of the concurrence
of at least one qualifying circum-
stance, either of, treachery, or of
abuse of superior strength, or with
the aid of armed men, the first shown
by the entry of the shots at the back
and the second and the third by the
number of the armed capters, the
pellant and his i some

or one of whom killed T.

‘2. EVIDENCE; MARAUDERS: DISSI-
DENTS: BANDITS. [GROWING OF
BEARD — The fact that the ap-
pellant grew beard reaching his
breast as some of his companions did
is a positive and clear proof that he
was a member of the of macauders,
diesidents, bandits who were harass-
ing the pedceful jnhabitants of the
_town of Dagami and is environs.

3..ID.; . CONSPIRACY: "ACTS SHOW

- CONSPIRACY — Where one in a
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group of more than ten men all armed
with rifles upon meeting the victim
who was on the way to her home,

approached, took hold and dragged
‘her away and the next day the vic-
tim was found dead with two gun-
shot wounds, the acts of the male-
factors show and constitute conspira-
cy which renders the appellant liable

Philippine Decisions

mation about them; that as he begtﬁed
10 be excused from going with them they
beat him up with their rifles hitting him
on the head and causing him to lose
ccnsciousness; tha* when he came to the
chissidents took him together with another
male prisoner along with them and on
their way they met Mercedes Tobias and
i that uoon orders of the

for the crime committed by his com-
panions, although no one witnessed
the killing of ‘the victim.

Mod. R R 1

Solicitor General Pompeyo Diaz and
Assistant  Solicitor General Francisco
Carreon for appellee.

for

DECISION
PADILLA, 7.:

At about 4:00 o'clock in the after-
noon of 18 March 1948, while Mercedes
Tobias accomparied by Eusebio Gerilla
and Lucia Pelo was on the way to her
home in the barrio of Guinarona, munici
pality of Dagami, orovince of Leyte,
coming from her farm in Maanghon, she
met a group of more than ten men all
armed with rifles, some of them with
beard reaching the breast. Nestorio Re-
malante, one of the bearded men, ap-

roached, took hold of and dragged
Rlieroqd&s Tobias. She remonstrated and
entreated him not to take her use
she had done him no wrong. Remalante
continued to drag and struck her with
the butt of his rifle on different parts
of her body. The comoanions of Mer-
cedes were told to continue their way.
They saw Mercedes being dragged to-
ward the sitio of Sawahon.  Hardly
Ead they walked one kilometer when they
heard gun reports. following day
Mercedes Tobias was found dead in
Sawahon with two gunshot wounds, the
points of entry being at the back and of
exit at the left breast and shoulder (Ex-
kibit A).

Nestorio Remal was  charged

er

leader of the band he (the appellant)
took hold of Mercedes Tobias and when
h.. informed the leader that she refused
to go with them the leader again beat
him up (the appellant); that the dissi-
dents together with the captives
continued their wav; that after walking
100 meters they stopoed: that the leader
commanded five soldiers and the two
male prisoners to prepare the meal and
the other soldiers to take Mercedes To-
bias away; that not long hereafter the
appellant heard gun reports from a place
about a kilometer away; and that after
taking their meal he (the appellant) was
further questioned and the dissidents sa-
tisfied +hat he was not an informer re-
leased him.

The appellant admits he took hold
and dragged Mercedes Tobias on that
i Ithough he ds it was
upon orders of the leader of the band.
If it is true that he was illireated by the
captors and fell unconscious as a result
thereof, it is strange that he did not ex-
hibit or show anv bruise or wound which
would have left a scar. The corrobora-
tive evidence of his claim is given by
Emeterio Arellano who is the hushand
of his mother’s sister. The fagt that the
appellant grew beard: reaching his breast
as some of his companions did is a posi-
tive and clear proof that he was a mem-
ber of .the group of marauders, dissidents,
bandits who were harassing the peaceful
inhabitants of the town of Dagami and
its- environs. It is true that no one wit-
nessed the killing of Mercedes -Tobias,
but the acts of the malefactors show and
constitute conspiracy which renders the
la:’l:q:vl:!_lant liabl_e for the crime committed
y his

with the complex crime of kidnapping
with murder. His companions have not
been aporehended. After trial the Court
of .First Instance of Leyte found him
guilty of the crime charged and sen-
tenced him to reclusion perpetua, the ac-
cessories of the law, to indemnify the
|-¢irs of the deceased in the sum of P2,000
and to pay the costs. He has appealed.

The appellant claims that at about
1:00 o’clock in the afternoon of that day
vhile he together with Emeterio Arellano
was working on his farm at Binog the
dissidents apprehended and detained him
because they weré not satisfied with his
2nswers as to whether he had been fur-

rishing the constabular- soldiers infor-
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There.is no sufficient evidence of in-
tention to kidnap because from the mo-
ment ‘Mercedes Tobias was held and
dragged to the time when the gun re-
ports were heard nothing was done or
said by the appellant or his confederates
to show or indicate that the captors in-
tended to deprive her of her liberty for
sometime and for some purpose and
thereafter set her free or kill her. The
interval was so short as to negative the
icea implied in kidnapping. Her short
detention and illt are iacluded
or form part of the peroetration of the
crime of murder. It is murder because
of the concurrence of at least one guali-
fying circumstance, either of treachery,
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oi of abuse of superior strength, or with
the aid of armed men, the first shown
by the entry of the shots at the back and
the second and ‘the third by the number
cf the armed captors. the appellant and
his companions, some or one of whom
killed Mercedes Tobias. For Jack of
sufficient number of ‘votes as required by
law, the death penalty recommended by
the Solicitor General cannot be imposed.

The judgment appealed from is af-
fiimed, with costs against the appellant.

Paras, C.J., Bengzon, Jugo, Pablo,
Montemayor, Bautista Angelo, and La-
brador, []., concurred.

Messrs. Justices Feria and R-:yes took
no part.

I certify that Mr. Tustice Tuasor: con-
curred in this opinion.
(SGD.) RICARDO PARAS
ief Justice

v

Adnministrative Case, No. 126, cs. In
re: Alty. Tranquilino Rovero, respond-
ent, Oclober 24, 1952, Paras, C. J.

1. ATTORNEY-AT-LAW; ACTS OF
ATTORNEY NOT IN THE EXER-
CISE OF LEGAL PROFESSION.—
Under Sec. 25, Rule 127 of the
Rules of Court, a member of ‘the
bar may be removed or suspended
from his office .as attorney for a con-
viction of a crime involving moral
turpitude, and this ground is a part
from any deceit, malpractice or
other gross misconduct in office as
lawyer.

2. ID.; MORAL TURPITUDE, DEFINED:
CONVICTION OF SMUGGLING. —
Moral turpitude includes any act
done contrary to justice, honesty,
modesty or good morals. c con-
viction of an attorney of smuggling
by final decision of the Court of Ap-
peals certainly involves an act done
contrary at least to honesty or good
morals,

First Assistant Solicitor General Ru-
#erto Kapunan, Jr. and Solicitor Jesus
A. Avanceila as complainants.

Respondent in his own behalf.
RESOLUTION

PARAS, C. It
The Solicitor-General has filed the
present complaint for disbarmeni against
Atty. Tranquilino Rovero. on the
grounds that on March 31, 1947, “res-
pondent Tranquilino Rovero, havin; been
feund in a final decision rendered by the
then Insular Collector of Customs to have
vfdale§ the customs |law" by fraudulently

p wag
fined in an amount egual to three times
the cufitoms duty due on a piece of
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jewelry which he omitted to declare and
which was subsequently found to be con-
cealed in his wallet”, and that on Octo-
28, 1948, “respondent Transquilino
Rovero was convicted of smuggling by
final decision of the Court of Anpeals in
Criminal Case No. CA-G. R. No.
2214-R, affirming a judgment of the
Court of First Instance of Manila sen-
tencing him to pay a fine of $2,500.00,
with subsidiary imprisonment in case of
insolvency, said case involving a iraudu-
lent practice against customs reveiiue, as
defined and penalized by Section 2703
of the Revised Administrative "
e resp admits the exi of
the decision of the Collector of Customs,
‘and his conviction by the Court of Ap-
peals, but sets up the defense that they
are not sufficient to disqualify him from
the practice of law, especially because
the acts of which he was found guilty,
while at most merely discreditable, had
een committed by him as an individual
and not in pursuance or in the exercise
of his legal profession.

Under section 25, Rule 127, of the
Rules of Court. a member of the bar
may be removed or suspended irom his
office as attorney for a conviction of a
crime involving moral turpitude, and this
ground is apart from any deceit, mal-
practice or other gross misconduct in of:
fice as lawyer. Moral turpitude inclu
any act done contrary to justice, horesty;
modesty or good morals, (In re Basa,
41 Phil. 275.) '

R dent's iction of
by final decision of the Court of Appeals
certainly involves an act done contrary
at least to honesty or good morals. The
giound invoked by he Solicitor General
is aggravated by the fact that the res-
pondent sought to defraud, not merely
a private person, but the Government.

v
i

Wherefore, the respondent Tranqui-
lino Rovero is hereby disbarred irom the
practice of law, and he is hereby directed
to surrender to this Court his lawyer’s
certificate within 10 days after this re-
solution shall have become final.

So ordered.

Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Moni¢ma-
yor, Jugo, Bautista Angelo and Labra-
dor, J.]J., concurred.

IX

In re: Petition for the Probate of
the Will of the Deccased Da. Leona
Singson. Dr. Manuel Singson, pelitioner-
appellee, vs. Emilia Florentino, Trinidad
Florentino de Paz, ¢t al, L-4603, Octo-
ber 25, 1952, Bautista Angelo, |.

1. WILL;
INSTRUMENTAL WITNESS. —

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

TRIAL; DEPOSITION - OF*

-

2.

Where the instrumental witness of
the will is within the seat of the court
but is unable to appear at the trial
because of sickness his deposition may
be taken under Sec. 11, Rule 77 in
connecticn with Sec. 4, Rule 18 of
the Rules of Court.

1D.; ATTESTATION CLAUSE;
NUMBER OF PAGES UPON WHICH
WILL 1S WRITTEN. — The provision
of Sec. 618 of the Code of Civil
Procedure, as amended by Act No.
2645, which requires that the attes-
tation clause shall state the number
of pages or sheets upon which the
will is written is mandatory as an
effective safeguard against the pos-
sibility of interpolation or ommission
of some of the pages of the will to
the prejudice of the heirs to whom
the property is intended to be be-
queathed.

ID.; ID.; FAILURE TO STATE
NUMBER OF PAGES UPON WHICH
WILL IS WRITTEN.— Where the
attestation clause of the will does not
state the number of sheets or pages
upon which the will is writien, but
the last part of the body of the will
contains a statement that it is com-
posed of eight pages, the will is draft-
ed in substantial compliance with the
law.

1D ID: PLACE WHERE SIGNA-
TURE OF TESTATRIX HAD BEEN
AFFIXED.— The attestation clause
of the will reads: “Nosotros los tes-
tigos, conforme al ruego de Da Leo-
na Singson, en este testamento, des-
pues de anunciarnos que este es su
testamento donde hizo sus ordenes
sobre su verdadera y ultima volun-
tad, firmo .o imprimio su carca digi-
tal en presencia de todos nosotros; y
nosotros firmamos tambien en presen-
cia de ella y delante de cada uno
de nosotros al pie del citado testa-
mento y en el margen izquierdo de
sus_otras paginas. Y hemos obser-
vado que Da. Leona Singson esta-
ba en su sano juicio, pensamiiento y
uso de sus sentidos,” Held: The
attestation clause at first glance
would appear that the testatrix
merely signed or stamped her thumb-
mark on the will in the presence of
the witnesses, without stating the
place where signature or thumbmark
had been affixed, which impression
is caused by the fact that right after
the sentence “firmo e imprimio su
marca digital en presencia de todos
nosotros,” there appears a semicolon;
but if this semicolon is disregarded,
it would appear that the testatrix
signed or affixed her thumbmark not
only at the bottom of the will but
also on the left margin of each and

‘eyery " page

ereon, g
the concluding part of the sentence
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concerning the signing of the will.
That semicolon undoubtedly has beer
placed there by mistake or through
inadvertence, as may be deduced
from the use of the word “tambien”

shown to the court. If a subscribing
witness is. present in the Philippines but
outside the province where the will has
been filed, his deposition must be taken.
In this case Fidel Reyes was not outside
of the province, in fact he was then living

made by the wit in the
immediately followmg, which conveys
the idea of oneness in action both
on the part of the testatrix and the
witnesses. Thus considered and in-
terpreted, the attestation clause com-
plies substantially with the law.

Vicente Paz for oppositors-appellants.

Felix V. Vergara and Pedro Singson
for petitioner-appellee Dr. Manuel Sing-
son and legatees Consolacion Florentiro
ard Rosario F. de Donato.

DECISION
BAUTISTA ANGELO, J.:

This is an appeal from a dec:sion of
the Court of First Instance of Ilocos Sur
admitting to probate the last will and
testament of the late Leona Singzon.

On January 13, 1948, Leona Singson
died in Vigan, Ilocos Sur, leaving a will.
In said will the deceased instituted as
heirs her brothers Evaristo, Dionisio and
‘Manuel, her nieces Rosario F. de Do-
nato, Emilia Florentino and Trinidad
Florentino de Paz, her grand niece Con-
solacion Florentino, and some servants.
She named her brothers Evaristo and Ma-
nuel as executors of the will. On Feb-

ary 2, 1948, Manuel Singson filed a
petmon for the probate of said will.

On March 6, 1948, Emilia Florentino,
Trinidad Florentino de Paz and Josefi-
na Florentino Vda, de Lim, daughters
of a sister of the deceased, opposed the
petition alleginz among other grounds
that the signature appearing in the will
are not the genuine signatures of the de-
ceased, and that the will has not been
‘executed in accordance with the for-
malities of the law. *

After due trial, the court found that
the will has been executed in accordan-e
‘wih law and admitted the same to pro-
‘bate. The oppositors appealed” to the
Court of Appeals, but the case was later
certified to this Court for the reason that
it involves purely questions of law.

The flrst error assigned refers to the
admission by the lower court of the de-
“position of Fldel Reyes, an instrumental
witness, which was taken because he was
then suffering from ~aralysis and was
thus physically incapacitated to appear
and testify in court. It is the claim of
the oppositors that, under section 11, rule
77 of the Rules, if the will is contested,
‘all the subscribine witnesses. present in
the Philippines must be produccd and
exarnined, and if thev are dead, absent
or insane, this fact must be satisfactorily
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in the place where the case was pending
trial. He, therefore, must appear in
court and his deposition cannot be taken.
And 5o they contend that the lower cowm:
erred in. admitting his deposition instead
of taking his testimony.

It should be noted that one of the
three instrumental witnesses of the will,
namely, Bonifacio Brillantes, was already
dead when the case came up for trial
‘and the only witnesses then available
were Victoriano Lazo and Fidel Reyes
who was then unable to appear because
of his physical ailment. And when this
matter was brought to the knowledge of
the court, the latter manifested its desire
to go to the house of the ailing witness
for the taking of his testlmony. but the
move was prevented because of the con-
formity of counsel for the oppositors to
the taking of his deposition. And be-
cause of this conformity. the deposition
was taken and on that

Philippine Decisions

the will is written, which requirement has
keen held to be mandatory as an e
safeguard against the possibility of inter-
polation or omission of some of the pages
of the will to the prejudice of heirs to
whom the property ls mtended to be be-
aueathed (In re will of Andrada, 42
Fhil. 180; Uv Coque v. Navas L. Sioca,
43 Phil. 405; Gumban v. Gorecho, 50
Phil. 30; Quinto v. Morata, 54 Phil.
481; in re will of Maximo Sarmiento v.
Roman Sarmiento, et al., 38 Off. Gaz.,
2632). The ratio decidendi of these
cases seems to be that the attestation
clause must contain a statement of the
number of sheets or pages composing the
will and that if this is missing or is
omitted, it will have the effect of invalid-
ating the will if the deficiency cannot be
supphed not by evn‘]ence aliunde, bmtllzlv
tion of the
wdl itself. But here the situation is dif-
ferent. While the attestation clause does
not state the number of sheets or pages
upon which the will is written, however,
the last part of the body of the will con-
tains a Statement that it is composed of
eight pages, which circumstance in our
opinion takes this case out of the rigid

ccunsel was present and actually took
part in the taking of the deposition, In
the face of these facts, we opine that,
while the taking of the deposition was
not made in strict compliance with the
rule (section 11, rule 77), the deficiency,
it any, has been cured by the waiver
eunced by counsel for the oppositors

revented the court from constitut-
u'.g mef in the residence of the witness.

‘We belicve, however, that the deposi-
tion may also be justified by inter-
preting section 11, rule 77, in connection
with rule 18, section 4(c), of the Rules,
relative to the taking of the deposition
of a witness in ordinary cases when he
is unable to tesufy because of sickness.

g an together
these two provisions we may draw the
conclusion that even if an instrumental

* witness is within the seat of the court but

is unable to appear because of sickness,
as in this case, his deposition may still
be taken, for a different interpretation
would be senscless and impractical and
would defeat the very purpose which
said rule 77 intends to serve.

Another point raised by cppositors re-
fers to the alleged failure of the attesta-
tion clause to .state the number of
sheets or pages in which the will is writ-
ten which, it is claimed, is fatal because
it is conm\ry to the express requirement
of the law.

The law referred to ls amcle 6|8 of
the Code of Civil P

rule of and places it within
the realm of similar cases where o broad
ard more liberal view has been zdonted
to prevent the will of the testator from
being defeated by purelv technical con-
siderations.

One of such cases is De Gala v. Gon-
zales and Ona. 53 Phil. 104 Here one
cf the objections raised was that the at-
testation clause does not state that the
will had been signed in the presence of
the witnesses although this fact appears
in the last paragranh of the body of
the will, and the Coutt, in overruling
the objection, said that “it may be con-
ceded that the attestation clause is not
artistically drawn and that, standing
alone, it does not auite meet the require-
ments of the statute, but taken in con-
nection with the last clause of the body
of the will, it is fairly clear and suffi-
ciently carries out the legislativ: intent;
it leaves no possible doubt as to the
authenticity of the document”.

Another case that may be cited is
Mendoza v. Pilapil, 40 Off. Gaz., No.
9, p. 1855. (Tune 27, 1941). In this
case, the objection was that the attesta-
tion clause does not state the number of
vages upon which e will was written,
;:cl yet the court held that l‘ll:e law has

a: in the body of the will and on the same
page wherein the attestation clause ap-
pears written it is expressly stated that
wll contains three ‘pages ea ich
d in letters: and in figures.

by Act No. 2645, which reqmres that
the attestation clause shall state the
number of pages or sheets upda which

THE LAWYERS JOURNAL

Said the court: .
“El proposito de la ley al establecer
las formalidades que se requieren en un
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es
¥y garantizar su autenticidad contra la
mala fe y el fraude, para evitar que
aquellos que no tienen derecho a suceder
al testador, le suceden y salgan benefi-
clados con la legalizacion del mismo. Se
ha cumplido dicho proposito en el caso
de que se viene hablando porque, en el
mismo cuerpo del testamento y en la
misma pagina donde aparece la clausula
de atestiguamiento, o sea la tercera, se
expresa que el testamento consta de tres
paginas y porque cada una de las dos
primeras lleva en parte la nota en letras,
¥V en parte la nota en guarismos, de que
son respectivamente la primera ¥ segun-
da paginas del mismod. Estos hechos ex-
cluyen evidentemente todo temor, toda
sospecha, o todo asomo de duda de que
se haya sustituido alguna de sus paginas
con otra.” (Mendoza v. Pilapl, et al,
40 Off. Gaz., No. 9, pp. 1835, 1862).

Considering the form in which the will
question is written in the light of the

hberal ruling above adverted to the con-
clusion is inescapable: that the will has
been drafted in_substantial compliance

with the law.

is opinion fs bolstered

li: when we examine the will itself which
‘shby

ws on its face that it is really and

actually ‘composed of eight pages duly

signed

by the testatrix and her instru-

thental witnesses.

The remmmng question to be deter-

mined is: does the attestation clause
state that the testafrix signed each and
every page of the will in the presence of
the three instrumental witnesses as re-
quired by law?

The disputed attestation clause reads
as follows:

“NOSOTROS los testigos, conforme al
ruego de Da Leona Singson, en este
testamento, despues de’ aunciarnos que
este ‘es su testamento donde kizo sus
ordenes sobre su verdadera y ultima vo-
luntad, firmo o imprimio su marca digi-
tal en presencia de todos nosotros; ¥
nosotros firmamos tambien en presencia
de ella v delante de cada uno de noso-
tros al pie del citado testamento y en
el margen izquierdo de sus otras paginas.
Y hemos observado que Da. Leona
Singson estaba en su sano juicio, pensa-
miento ¥ uso de sus sentidos. (Exh.
A1)

A perusal of the above attestation

clause would at first glance give the im-
pression that the testatrix merely signed
or stamped her thumbmark on the will

smmg the place where her

in the presence of the witnesses, wnthout

at once see that the testatrix signed or
affixed her thumbmark: not only at the
bottom ‘of the will but also on the left

margin of each and every page thereon,
considering the concluding part of the

sel

will.

ntence concerning the signing of the
at cemicolon undoubtedly has

been placed there by mistake or through

inadvertence, as may be ded

th

the

uced from

e use of lhe word tambien made bv

ly follcwmg, whn:h conveys the idea of

oneness in action both on the
testatrix and the witnesses.

art of the
us consi-

dered and interpreted, the attestation

i:lause complies substantially with the

aw.

“The appellants earnestly contend that
the attestation clause fails to show that
the witnesses signed the will and each
and every page thereof because it simply
says ‘que posotros los testigos hemos
tambien firmado en presencia de la tes-
tadora ¥ en la presencia del uno al otro’
(that we the witnesses also signed in the
presence of the testatrix and of each
other).

In answer to this contention it may
be sald that this portion of the attesta-
tion clause must be read in connection
with the portion preceding it which
states that the testatrix signed the will
and on all the margins thereof in the
presence of the be-

. APPEAL;

filed her answer within the time pro-

vided for in Sec. 1, Rule 9 of the

Rules of Court, she could not be
deemed and declared in default
(Sec. 3, Rule 7).
WHO COULD WITH-
DRAW THE APPEAL—UII the
provisions of Sec. 9, Rule 40 of the
Rules of Court, the oartv who could
withdraw the appeal to the Court of
First Instance from the judgment of
the municipal court was the appel-
lam, because such withdrawai would
the judgment against her ren-
dered by the municipal court. Ob-
viously. the apnellees for whom
judgment was rendered could not
ask for the withdrawal of the ap-
peal. They would not ask for the
dismissal of the case because the
judgment secured by them would not
be revived thereby and they would
left without judgment which was
vacated upon verfection of the ap-
peal.

. ID.; FAILURE TO APPEAR AT THE

TRIAL: WITHDRAWAL OF AP-
PEAL..— When the defendan® or her
attorney in an action for detainer and
collection of rentals due and unpaid
failed to appear at the: resumption
of the trial, the court could not dis-
mm the appeal to the Court of First

from the jud, of the

cause the word also used therein’ estab-
lishes a very close conncction between
said two portions of the attestation
clause. This word also should: therefora
he given its full meaning which, in the
instant case, is that the witnesses signed
the will in the same manner as the tes-
tatrix did. The language of the whole
attestation clause, taken together, clear-
ly shows that the witnesses signed the
will and on all the margins thereof in
the presence of the testatrix and of each
other.” (Rey v. Cartagena, 56 Phil. pp.
282, 284.)

In view of the foregoing, we find that

the lower court dld not commlt nny of

the errors

municipal court because it was not
authorized to do so, but was in duty
bound to hear the evidence of the
plainiiffs and render judgment ther«-
on unless for gcod reasons it deem-
ed it justified to postpone the hear-
ing of the case. Nor could it dismiss
the case and grant the remedy pray-
ed for, such as the payment of ren-
tals, even if the derndant had va-
cated already the premises, without a
finding that such rentals were really

e and unpaid, for a dismissal of
the case, if granted, would leave the
prevailing parties in the municipal
court bereft of or without a judgment.
The failure of the defendant or her

y
therefore, we affirm the decision appeal-
ed frob, with costs.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla,
curred.

and Mon(emayor. JJ., cone

Messrs.  Justices Jugo and Labrader

cencurred in the result.

X
Eugenio Evangelista and Simeon
E: lista, plaintiffs-appellees, vs. Bri-

thumbmark had been affixed, which i ||n-
pression is caused by the fact that right
after the sentence firmo e imprimio su
marca digital en presencia de todos no-
sofros, there appears a semicolon; but if
this semicolon is disregarded, ws would

666

gida Soriano, delcndanl-appeuan;. L-

4625, October 29, 1952, Padilla, ].

1.

DEFAULT; ANSWER; EFFECT OF
FILING ANSWER— Where the de.
fendant in an action for detainer and
collection of rentals due and unpaid
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y to appear at the resumption
of the trial of the case could not be
deemed a withdrawal of her appeal.
And as there are no findings of fact
upon which a judgment may be bas-
ed and rendered, the order of the
court holding that defendant’s fail-
ure to appear and prosecute her ap-
peal is tantamount to a withdrawal
of the case on the merit's (section 12,
Article VIII, of the Constitution).

PARTY: DEATH OF PARTY WHEN
CASE IS PENDING. — Wher: a par-
ty died when the case is pznm
her attorney should prove the fact of
her death and the court shall order,
upon proper noiice, the legal repre-
sentative of the deceased to appear
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for her within 30 days or such time
as may be granted, as provided for
in_section 17, Rule 3 of the Rules
of Court.

DECISION
PADILLA, J:

-This is an action for detainer and col-
lection of rentals due and unpaid. After
trial judgment was rendered for the plain-
tiffs. The defendant appealed filing a
supersedeas bond. In the Court of First
Instance the defendant filed an answer
setting up illegality of the rentals sought
to be collected and of he va-
lue of the leased premises upon whi
the ‘increased rental was based, failure
of the plaintiffs to make plumbing re-
pairs in the leased premises, a counter-
claim for P128 claimed to be an excess

~ 1

tion 17, Rule 3, shall have been com-
plied with, in view of the fact that the
defendant had died on 9 January 1949,
and explaining that his (attorney’s) fail-
ure to appear at resumpton of

trial on 21 January was due to the fact
that there was a proposal for an amic-
able settlement and that'not having heard
from the defendant despite his letter to
her sent on the 15th, he thought that
the case had been settled amicably. On
29 January 1949 both motions for dis-
missal of the case filed on behalf of the
plaintiffs and for suspension of the pro-
ceedings [led in behalf of the defendant
were acted upon, the Court inviting at-

which -tention to its order of 21 January 1949,

which, according to it, disposed of the
two motions, and further holding that
the case was “within the jurisdiction of
the Municipal Court for the execution of
the judgme dered by it in his case.”

‘of the amount of rental auth y
law from February 1945 to December
1946, both inclusive, and damages in the
sum of P250. On 21 January 1949
the attorneys for the plaintifs filed a mo-
tion praying for the dismissal of the case,
payment to the plaintiffs of the super-
‘sedeas bond ‘in the sum of P347.50 and
withdrawal by them of the amount of
176 for rentals deposited by the de-
fendant, for the reason that the latter
kad. vacated the premises on 19 January
1949 and because she and her attorney
failed to appear at.the resumption of
the trial of the case on 21 January, the
plaintiffs waiving ‘payment of rentals for
Tuly, ber, Novem ecember
1948 and half of January 1949, to put
‘an ‘end to the litization, withcut costs.
‘On that date, after stating that the case
:was partly tried on 1 July, the trial hav-
‘ing been postnoned due to the failure of
the clerk of the municipal court to for-
ward the exhibits presented by the par-
ties, and that the resumption of the trial
set for 24 Ausust and 23 September was
‘postponed again upon motion of the at-
torney for the defendant and set for 21
January 1949 on which date the de-
fendant and her attorney failed to ap-
pear and the attorneys for the plaintiffs
moved for the dismissal of the case and
prayed that the plaintiffs be allowed to
withdraw the rentals depositedin court
by the defendant, the court entered an
order holding that ‘‘her failure to appear
and prosecute her appeal is tantamount
to a withdrawal of said appeal” and
that “the appeal is considered with-
drawn, the judgment of the Municipal
Court is deemed revived and let the re-
cord of the case be remanded to the Mu-
nicipal Court in accordance with Sec. 9,
Rule 40, of the Rules of Court, for the

£ of the judgment rendered by
it in the case.” On 24 January 1949 the
attorney for the defendant filed a mo-
tion praying thay the promf]@ngs be sus-

the
On 18 May 1949, acting upon a motion
filed by the plaintiffs, the court author-
ized the atorneys for the plaintiffs to with-
draw the sum of P176 in cash for rentals
deposited and of P347.50 as super-
sem bond, and further stated that “this
ithdrawal is. authorized in )
with the judgment rendered in this case
on 21 January 1949.” On 21 June 1949
aitorney for the defendant moved for
reconsideration of the order of 18 May
1949, on the ground that it was con-
trary to law and ‘entered without juris-
diction. This motion was denied.- A no-
tice of appeal, an appeal bond and a
record on appeal were filed. The appeal
was ified to this Court becausé only
2;08&0115 of law are raised and involv-

Section 9, Rule 40. provides: - -“A
perfected appeal shall operate to vacate
the judgment of x x x the municipal
court, and the action when duly entered
in the Court of First Instance shall stand
for trial de novo upon its merits in ac-
cordance with the regular procedure in
that Court, as though the same had nev-
er been tried before and had been origin-
ally there commenced. If the appeal is
withdrawn, the judgment shall be deem-
ed revived and shall forthwith be re-
manded to the x x x municipal court for
execution.” The defendant filed her ans-

wer within. the time provided foir n sec- .

tion 1, Rule 9, so she could not be deem-
ed and declared in default (section 3,
Rule 7). Even if she had failed to file
her answer within the time required and
were declared in default, the plaintiffs
were bound to present their evidence upon
which judgment could be rendered. In
accordance with the above quoted pro-
visions of section 9, Rule 40, the party
who could withdraw the appeal was the
appellant, because such withdrawal
Wolf‘ld ievln;re the j“dqll_ﬂll| against her

pended until after the pi of sec-
December 81, 1952

y the court, Ob-
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viously, the appellees for whom judg

ment was rendered could not ask for the
withdrawal of the appeal. They would
not ask for the dismissal of the case be-
cause the judgment secured by them
would not be revived thereby and they
would be left without judgment which
wa;l vacated upon perfection of the ap-
peal.

It is contended -that section 9, Rule
40, is not applicable to appeals in de-
tainer cases because the appeal does not
vacate the judgment but suspends only,
as may be inferred from the authority
of the court to which the case has been
appealed to order execution of the judg-
ment during the pendency of the appeal
upon failure of the appellant to pay to
the prevailing party or to deposit in court
the stipulated rentals or the reasonable

¢ ion, for the preceding month
on or before the tenth day of each month,
for the use or occupation of the pre-
mises, as fund by the judgment of the
municipal or justice of the peace court.
This. authority to direct execution "ex-
pressly provided for in section 8, Rule 72,
in no way alters the provisions of sec-
tion 9, Rule 40, on the effect of an ap-
peal upon a judgment rendered by a mu-
nicipal or justice of the peace court. And
proof of this is the provision in the same
section that such execution shall not be
a bar to the appeal taking its course un-
til the final disoosition thereof on its me-
rits.”” When the defendant or her attor-
ney failed to appear at the resumption
of the trial on 21 January 1949, the
court could not dismiss the appeal be-
cause it was not authorized to do so, but
was in duty bound to hear the evidence
of the plaintiffs and render judgment
thereon unless for réasons it deemed
it justified to postpone the hearing of the
case. Nor could it dismiss the case and
grant the remedy prayed for, such as the
payment of rentals, even if the defendant
had vacated already the premises, with-
out a finding that such rentals were rea}-
ly due and unpaid, for'a dismissal of the

‘case, if granted, would leave the prevail-

ing parties in" the municipal court bereft
of or without a judgment. The failure of
the defendant or her attorney to appear
at the resumption of the trial of the cass
on 21 January 1949 could not be deem-
ed a withdrawal of her appeal. And as
there are no findings of facts upon which
a judgment may be based and rendered,
the order of 21 January 1949 is not and
cannot be deemed a judgment of the case
on the merits (section 12. Article VIII,
of he Constitution).

As to the substitution of the defend-
ant, her attorney should prove the fact
of her death and the court shall order,
upon proper notice, the legal representa-
tive of the ased to appear for her
within 30 days or such time as may be
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granted, as_providéd “forini ‘section 7,
’lR'ule 3. The C«;(xrtf c;:!d not erder the
R representaive of s& to ap-
p?"al for' her because it considered the
‘order of 21 January 1949 as judgment
‘éntered in the case and rotice of the
defendant’s death was given it three: days
latet or on 24 January }

The trial court seems to be of the be-
-lief and ?pgngmn that jt;otd::”hof 21
January 1949 .is a judgment, where it
held . that failure of the defendant or
ber attorney to appear at the resumption
of the hearing of the case on that date
was :Tntamount tou;g witl\d:;wla'l of the
appeal, that the judgment of the muni-
eil;al court was revived, and that for that
reason it directed the record of the case
to be remanded to the municipal court
for execution. For the reasons above set
forth this is an error, because as the ap-
pellant did not withdraw the appeal
there was no withdrawal thereof. On the
other hand, as already stated, the appel-
Iees could not ask for the withdrawal .of
the appeal because it- was not their ap-
_peal and would not ask for the. dismissal
of the case - because, if granted, they
would have been left wnthout a judg-
ment.

“The orders of 29 January and 18 May
1949, being predicated upon an erron-
eous opinion that the order of 21 Jan-
uary 1949 is a judgment, which is not
and is a nullity, are set aside and the
case reman to" the court below for
further proceedinos in accordance with
Taw, w Eout costs.

Paras, C.J., Pablo, Bengzon, Mon-
femayor, Jugo, Bautista Angelo and
Labrador, ]].. concurred.

XI

Alicia S. Gonzales, plaintiff-appellee,
vs. ‘Asia Life Insurance Co., defendanl—

appellant, L-5188, October 29, 1952,
Bcngzcm, J.
1. INSURANCE: TENDER OF PRE-

MIUM REFUSED.—On Apil 15,
1940, the defendant Asia Life In-
surance Company insured the life of
G. The premium was payable an-
nually on.or before April 15. The
premiums for the first two vears were
duly paid. On'or before April 15,
1942 the insured tendered the, pre-
mium for the.third policy year to the
branch office of the company in Il>-
ilo City, but the insurer refused to ac-
oept it, because the office wes clos-
ing for the day on account of the
threat of bombing by Japanese

On Sept. P G

planes.

dlecl Held: The refusal ta_accept

payment was no* sustified.. The in-

surer, therefore, may not asset nen-

payment of the premium as a-de-
tocan action on the policy. The

“act of the insurer or his agent im re-
fusing ‘the tender, of ‘a premium pro-
perly made, will necessarily estop

- the insurer from claimine a fo:fel
ture from non-payment,

1. A. Wolfson for appellant. -
Fulgencio V'ega for appellee.

DECISILON
RENGZON, J.: -

On April 15, the defendant
American oorporatwn muedt its twenty-
year clowment policy insuring the
of Celso R. Gonzales and designating
the plaintiff "Alicia S.- -Gonzales, as be-
reficiary. premium was payable an-
nually on or before April 15. The pre-
miums for the first two years were duly
paid. The.premium accruing April 15,
1942 was not actually paid. But ac-
cording to the court of first instance of
Iicilo, where this case was tried, “On or
before April 15,1942 -the premlum for
the third pchcy year was to

<" There is no question® that ‘under the
terms of the policy, non-paymesnt of pre-
imiums-‘en_time’ would cause the Iupae
thereof. There is also no question that
the annual premium for same policy was
due and payable on April 15, 1942
there being no allegation or claim- that
such' surrender value and accumulated

ftomwhuhdlememmmmddbeadr

-vanced. by the insurer.

. Appellant’s . sole aangnmem of error
is that the trial court erred in not Inld-

.ing that the policy lapsed by reason of

nan-payment of premiums. The only ar-
gument i, support of this Wm is
our ion in Constantino v. Asia
Insurance Comnar- 47. Of. Gaz. Suppl.
12 p. 428 and others, holding that the
occurence of war was no excuse for non-
payment of premiums. In the face of
cur. rulings the lower court’s decision (X
following a. contrary docirine must bz
erraneous,

However, it does not follow' that de-

l’en«)antl is entltlcd to reversal. His Ho-

the branch office of the companv in Ilo-
ilo City, but was not accepted because
at the time it was tendered the office was
closing for the dayb on' account of the

nor d that the hud.been
tendered on or before April 15, 942
the insurer refusing to accept it, *

cause the office was closing for the duy
on account of the threat of bombing by

threat of bombi planes.
There is some controversy between the
parties as to this fact, the defendant de-
nying “that tender of payment was ever
made, while on the other hand the plain-
tiff’s witness Carlos Soriano, who was
the one who had been delegated bv the
insured to make the payment, could not
remember the nrecise date when he of-
fered it. But that there was tender of
payment of the third-vear premium on
o before its due date, which however
was not accepted for the reason already

te. mav reasonably be inf
from the fact that the plaintiff's state-
ment to that effect in her claim-letter
written to defendant on Nurember
2, 1945 (Exh. 1Y, was not chall

planes.” That is a finding of
fact which we find no reason to. disturb.
The refusal to accept payment was not
justified. The insurer, therefore, may not
assert non-payment of the premium as a
defense to-an. action o the policy.

“The act of the insurer or his agent
in refusing the tender of a premium pro-
perly made, will necessarily estop the in-

surer [rom claiming a forfeiture from non-

paymient.” (Viarce on Insurance 2d Ed.
p. 294 citing Meyer v. Ins. Co. 29 Am.
Rep. 200; Continental Ins. Co. v. Mil-
ler 30 N.E. 71 8).

According to Corpus Juris, Vol. 32,
tender to an agent authonzed to r:uwe

ar denied by the latters agent in Hoilo,
who simoly transmitted said letter to
the Manila office for adjudication of the
claim on the basis of what was therein
stated.”

- On September 22; 1942 Celso R.
Gonzales died.

After the deliberation. - in- January
1947 this suit was instituted. The defense
was based on. nan-payment of the pre-
mium, and the consequent lapse of the
clicy before the insured’s death. The
Hon. Queruben Macalintal allowed the

plaintiff beneficiary to recover on the
nounds (1) that the premium for April
15, 1942 had been tendered on or be-
fere ﬂlat date but was refused, and (2)
because of that
was excused b~ thie occurence of the war.
the American insurance company having
?l:saldg zt; Hoilo office on and after April

THE. LAWYERS JOURNAL

P t of p y suf-
ficient to prévent a forfemue for non-
payment. ‘(p. IBII)

“When the nslured ‘was Involved in no
default, but was at the place when and
‘where .payment was to be made, ready
and willing to pay, but was prevented
by the disability of the company to re-
ceive payment, from whatever cause, he
having had no agency In producing it,
the company is not.entitled to claim the
forfelture, or to be relieved from its obli-
gation to pay the sum assured.” (Man-
hattan I Ins. Co. v. Warwick, supra.)
(Note, Corpus Juris Vol. 32 p. 1306)

Again the situation here described
bears some similarity to'the case
the insured made efforts to pay at the
office of the insular but could not pay
due to the absence of thé latter’s agent,

(1) Rendered before publication of our views.
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“Absence from office—While {nability
of insured to make payment at the of-

fice of Insurer because of the absence of -

its representatives does not excuse non-
payment where it does not appear that
the effort to make payment was made
‘during ' reasonable office hours, where
‘insured has made reasonable efforts to
pay during office hours but is prevented
by such absence, nonpayment is ex-
cused.” (Corpus Juris Sec. Vol. 45 p.
“474)

‘Wherefore, it is proper to affirm the
decision requiring the insurer to pay with
legal interest, the value of the policy mi-
nus: the amount of the premium unpaid
on September 22, A

‘The question whether the insurer was
justified in contesting the claim and
should pay the beneficiary legal interest
for the duration of the delay ), may

roperly be overlooked, because plaintiff
an not appealed.

‘Judgment affirmed, with costs.

Paras, CJ.._Pablo, Padilla, Monte-
mayor, Jugo, Bautista Angelo and La-
brador, ]]., concerred.

X
People of the Philippines, plaintiff-
lee. vs. Bi iy " d

3 P , de-
fendant-appellant, -L-4549, - October 22,
1952, Jugo, J.

1. CRIMINAL LAW: PENALTY: MI-
NORITY CONSIDERED AS A
SPECIAL MITIGATING CIRCUM-
STANCE.—The accused was more

“than nine but less than fifteen of
age at the time he committed the crime
of treason. However, the accused
acted with discernment, yet it may be
leader or commander of the raiding
party. Held: Although his minor-
ity does not exempt him from criminal
responsibility for the reason that he
acted with discernment, yet it may be
considered as a ‘special mitigating
circumstances lowering the penalty by
two

2. ID.;; MINORS: ‘SUSPENSION OF
SENTENCE. — Where the accused
.Wwas more than nine but less than fif-
teen years but was over eighteen years
old at the time of the trial, Art. 80
of the Revised Penal Code provid-
ing for suspension of sentence of mi-
nor delinquents cannot be applied.

(1) Sectlon 91-A Act as

Miguel F. Trias for appelant.
Solicitor General Pompeyo Diaz and
Solicitor Esmeraldo Umali for appellee.

DECISION
JUGO, J.:

Bienvenido Capistrano was charged
before the Court of First Instance of Que.
zon province with the crime of treason
on four (4) counts. He was found guilty
bv said court and setenced to suffer life
imprisonment -and to pay a fine of P10,-
000.000 and the costs.

The attorney de oficio of the appel-
lant states in a petition filed with this
Court that after having read, reread, and
studied the evidence, he finds no substan-
tial error committed by the trial court and
prays for the affirmance of the judg-
ment.

Philippine Decisions
dios Anastasio, Dolores Enriquez, Teo-
dora Zamora, tacion Anastacio,
and Placer Canada with a rope which
was used as a clothesline. The intruders
then search the premises and seized from
Alejo Enriquez Wong $1,000.00, U. S.
currency, and £4,000.00, Philippine cur-
rency. They took Graciano Fortuna and
the other inmates to the Japanese gar-
rison at Lopez, Tayabas (Quezon) and
then to the Yoin garrison in the same
town. The motive for the raid was that
Pedro Canada, a brother of Placer, was
a guerilla lieutenant in Lopez and Sal-
vador Fortuna, son of Graciano, was a
soldier in the said organization. One
night, during the detention of Placer and
her companions in the Yoin garrison, the

ppell fempted to lly al
Placer and her girl companions, but
when ‘the women cried and the Japanese
came, the defendant escaped. Placer and
i leased after one

e of record establishes the
following: - :

The accused Bienvenido Capistrano
admitted being -a Filipino citizen.

Count No. I

Alejo Enriquez Wong and Carmen
Verdera testified that the defendant was
a so-called Yoin, which means an armed
soldier of the Japahese. Wearing a Ja-
panese army as a guard of a Japanese
arrison, To the same effect, the witness
Placer Canada testified.

The defendant argued at the trial
court that there was no evidence show-
ing that he had been appointed a Yoin
or that he was a Makapili. While no
written formal appointment was intro-
duced in evidence, vet it is clear that he
was _engaged in the work of guarding
the Japanese garrison, armed with a gun
and wearing a lapanese uniform and
taking part in the military drills of the
Japanese army.

Count No. IT

her p were
month when they paid to the Chief of
the Yoin and the appellant the sum of
$2,500.00 in Japanese war notes. This
charge was testified to by the several vie-
tims. L
The accused was more than nine (9)
but less than fifteen (15) years of age
at the time that he committed the crime
charged. However, the court which had
the opportunity to see and hear the ac-
cused at the trial found that he acted
with discernment. It should be noted,
furth that he appeared as the
leader or commander of the raiding par-
ty. Although his minority does not exempt
tom from criminal responsibility for the
reason that he acted with discernment,
yet it mav be considered as a special
mitigating circumstance lowering the pe-
nalty by two (2) degrees.

Article 80 of the Revised Penal Code

cennot be applied to the accused use
he was over eighteen (18) years old- at
the time of the trial (People vs. Estefa,

47 Off. Gaz., No. 11, 5652).

In view of the above special mitigat-
ing ci of minority, th: penal-

At about 3:00 o’clock in the i
ot January 8, 1945, the defendant with
other Filipino members of the Yoin and
scveral Japanese soldiers, all armed, ar-
rived near the house of Carmen Verdera
in barrio Malav Municipality of Lopez,
Province of Tayabas (now Quezon),
and ordered the inmates therein to open
the door. The appellant and his compa-
rions entered the house raised the mos-
quito_nets and ordered the inmates to
rise. The llans and his i

Allcla S. Gonzales v. Asia Life Insurance
Company.

‘December 31, 1952

tied G rl"ortuna, Carmen Verdera,
Alejo Enriquez Wong, Rufino Rivera,
Maria Canada, Brisilio Canada, Reme-

——000——
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tv imposed upon the accused is hereby
modified by imposing upon him four (4)
years of gision correcciona!, to pay a
fine of 10.000.00 and to irdemnify
Alejo Enriquez Won~ in the sum of
¥6,000.00 with subsidiary imprisonment
in case of insolvency in the payment of
the fine and the indemnity, with costs.

It is so ordered.

Pablo, Bengzon, Padilla, Monlema-
yor, Bautista Angelo and Labrador, J].,

concurred.

Mr. Chief Justice Paras took no part.
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